
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




  Action Item A 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item A 


February 12, 2021 
 


Subject: Nomination of Christina Barker to Join IDEA Florida Governing Board 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


Pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Bylaws of IDEA Florida, Inc., the Board may elect Directors to the Board by an 
affirmative majority vote at a regular meeting of the Board.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Resume 


Presenter: NA 








Action Item B 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item B 
February 12, 2021 


Subject: Election of Officers 


Proposed Board Action: Election of Officers for a term commencing on Feb. 13, 2021


Executive Summary:   


Pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Bylaws of IDEA Florida, Inc., the Board shall elect officers.   


Supporting Documentation: NA 


Presenter: NA 








  Action Item C 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item C 
February 12, 2021 


 


Subject: Contract for Curriculum Materials and Consultation Services 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


The Florida Social Studies Curriculum Manager (CM) contacted all vendors listed on Florida’s state adoption list in 
order to ensure alignment with the Florida standards for K-2.  Additionally, the CM searched for other literacy-
based programs (Core Knowledge, Benchmark, Gallopade, Actively Learn).  A comprehensive review was 
completed on 5 programs that were aligned to the FL standards as well as 2 knowledge building programs (Core 
Knowledge and Lavinia).  This review was presented to the Advisory Cohort for feedback. 
 
In the final presentation, the CM proposed the adoption of “Insight Humanities” by the Lavinia Group.  They have a 
well thought out, scripted program that uses authentic children’s literature to build student knowledge.  
Additionally, through student project work, inquiry methods, and virtual field trips, this program utilizes culturally 
responsive strategies.  Three units per course will be customized to expand Insight Humanities for year-long social 
studies courses.  These additional units will more fully address Florida content standards, including geography and 
primary source analysis skills. 
 
The term of the agreement is February 15, 2021 through June 30, 2026. Total cost for current year is $12,750 for 
curricular materials and $33,000 for professional development.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Consulting Agreement Lavinia Group 


Presenter: Elliott Nguyen, Director of Procurement, IDEA Public Schools 








  Action Item D 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item D 


February 12, 2021 
 


Subject: Ratification of Givewell Community Foundation Grant 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


The GiveWell Community Foundation (Foundation) is a 501(c)(3) public charity serving Polk, Hardee, and Highlands 
counties in Central Florida. The Foundation holds more than 300 charitable funds established by individuals, 
families, organizations, and private foundations and serves a wide variety of charitable services.  For more than 20 
years, the GiveWell Community Foundation and its fundholders have been investing in the future of our 
communities through impactful, philanthropic giving. 
 
The Foundation recently approved a grant agreement for $2.5M payable to IDEA Florida to support the opening of 
a public School of Hope charter school in Lakeland, Florida in August 2023.  The terms and conditions of the grant 
are specified in the Grant Agreement (Appendix B).   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Givewell Community Foundation Grant Agreement 


Presenter: Dr. Christopher Warren, Regional Director of Advancement, IDEA Tampa Bay 








  Action Item E 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item E 
February 12, 2021 


 


Subject: Request for Proposal: Certified Public Accounting Firm for Annual Audit 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


Section 1002.333(6)(h), Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires a School of Hope charter school to comply with the annual 
audit requirements for charter schools in section 218.39, F.S. 
 
Section 218.391, F.S., sets forth the procurement process requirements that charter schools must follow when 
selecting a certified public accounting firm that is duly licensed under chapter 473, Laws of Florida, and qualified to 
conduct audits in accordance with government auditing standards as adopted by the Florida Board of 
Accountancy. 
 
The Request for Proposal (below) sets forth the factors that will be evaluated in selecting a qualified firm and is 
consistent with the requirements in S. 218.391, F.S.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Draft Auditor Selection RFP 


Presenter: Adam Miller, VP of Advancement 








  Action Item F 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item F 
February 12, 2021 


 


Subject: Meal Charge Policy and Procedures 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


The goal of IDEA Public Schools Child Nutrition Program (CNP) is to provide students with healthy meals each day.  
The purpose of the policy is to ensure that the IDEA CNP is compliant with applicable federal, state and local rules, 
regulations and policies while also providing oversight and accountability for the collection of student meal 
balances. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Meal Charge Policy and Procedures 


Presenter: Geena Huerta, CNP Finance Manager, IDEA Public Schools 








Action Item G 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item G 


February 12, 2021 


Subject:  CONSIDER AND APPROVE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE IPS 
ENTERPRISES—IDEA FLORIDA MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT (TAMPA II) 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary: 


The proposed amendment includes clerical errors identified during subsequent reviews.  The proposed 
amendment does not make material changes to the master lease agreement for the IDEA Hope facility.  The 
proposed amendment was reviewed by Counsel for IDEA Florida. 


Supporting Documentation: IDEA Resolution Approving Amendments to Master Lease Agreement for IDEA Hope 


Presenter: Adam Miller, VP Policy and Advocacy, IDEA Public Schools  








Action Item H 


IDEA Florida Board 
Action Item H 


February 12, 2021 


Subject: Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement – IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory Yr1 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary: 


The proposed agreement with Office Depot Workspace Interiors provides for the purchase, delivery and 
installation of classroom furniture for IDEA Hope and IDEA Victory for the year 1 launch.  The purchase includes 
classroom, office, cafeteria, reception, and storage furniture for a total of 4 launching schools (2 campuses) in 
Tampa, Florida. 


IDEA Public Schools has worked with Office Depot Workspace Interiors since 2017 and has had great success. In 
preparation for this procurement cycle, Office Depot has integrated with the Tyler Munis e-commerce system to 
expedite ordering, shorten the workflow, and improve overall accuracy as well as agree to locked pricing with a set 
percentage for delivery and installation. Due to the business in Texas and Louisiana, IDEA Tampa leverages 
increased economies of scale and ensures the highest levels of customer service and on-going support. 


The total cost for year 1 is $374,130.  As a part of the national Omnia purchasing cooperative contract, IDEA Florida 
will receive a 2% rebate. 


Supporting Documentation: Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 


Presenter: Elliott Nguyen, Director of Procurement, IDEA Public Schools 












Action Item I 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item I 
February 12, 2021 


Subject: Lease Amendment for 5118 56Th Street, Tampa 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary: 


The short-term lease for the facility used by IDEA Hope staff located at 5118 56th Street, Tampa, Florida was 
originally entered into between the Lessor and IPS, Enterprises Inc.  The proposed amendment removes IPS, 
Enterprises Inc. as the lessee and adds IDEA, Florida Inc., as the lessee.  The expenditures associated with this 
lease agreement are included in the approved 2020-21 budget adopted by the IDEA Florida Board. 


Supporting Documentation: First Amendment and Joinder to Lease. 


Presenter: Adam Miller, VP of Policy and Advocacy 








  Action Item J 


IDEA Florida 
Board Action Item J 
February 12, 2021 


 


Subject: Contract for Consulting Services 


 


Proposed Board Action: For Approval 


Executive Summary:   


As IDEA prepares to launch our first two campuses in Hillsborough County it is critically important that we 
accelerate our efforts and continue building deep and authentic relationships at every level of the community.  
RSA Consulting Group has an extensive network of strong connections across the greater Tampa area and a deep 
understanding of the local context and dynamics.  The scope of services is detailed in proposed contract. The 
proposed engagement is for the remaining five months of the fiscal year, for a total cost of $30,000, all inclusive, 
and will be paid for with private philanthropic funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Documentation: Proposed Independent Contractor Agreement 


Presenter: Adam Miller, VP of Policy and Advocacy 








 


IDEA Public Schools- Florida 
Board of Directors Meeting 


October 27, 2020 
9:30am EST 


 
Summary of Motions and Approvals 
 
The board passed a motion to approve the minutes from the August 7, 2020 board meeting. 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes  
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to approve Amendment #1 to the IDEA Florida 2020-21 budget 
Motion made by: Lizzette Reynolds 
Second to motion: Nick Rhodes 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to approve Conflict of Interest Policy 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to ratify University Mall Lease 
Motion made by: Lizzette Reynolds 
Second to motion: Nick Rhodes 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to ratify Avesta Lease 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to authorize request to Hillsborough School Board to consolidate 
IDEA Victory Academy and IDEA Victory CP into a single school and to consolidate IDEA Hope 
Academy and IDEA Hope CP into a single school. 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to authorize staff to submit necessary forms to Florida Division of 
Corporations to set up Doing Business As names for each campus 







 


Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to approve the Directors and Officers Insurance Policy 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
The board passed a motion to approve the submission of a Notice of Intent and draft 
Performance Based Agreement for Tampa #4 
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
 
 
 
Board Members present: Trey Traviesa-Chair, Nick Rhodes, Lizzette Reynolds 
 
IDEA Staff and Contractors present: Adam Miller, Chris Warren, Jessica Hess, Eric Haug, Daniel 
Woodring, Urian Anzaldua, Melissa Huffman 
 
Audience present: None 
 
Meeting is called to order by Trey Traviesa at 9:35am (EST) 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Trey Traviesa requested a motion to approve the minutes from the June 9, 2020 Board of 
Directors meeting.  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion made by Lizzette Reynolds   
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Updates 
Urian Anzaldua provided a financial update (see attached financial reports) and financial reports 
for months ending August 2020 and September 2020. 
 
Action Item A 







 


Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Urian Anzaldua provide an explanation (See 
Appendix A).  Urian provided an overview of the budget amendment, explaining that the 
amendment was needed to align with current grant funding amounts.   
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the budget. 
  
Motion made by: Lizzette Reynolds 
Second to motion: Nick Rhodes 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item B 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Adam Miller explain the item.  Adam 
explained that the proposed Conflict of Interest Policy was draft to meet the requirements of 
Florida law as they apply to charter school governing boards as well as align with the IDEA 
Conflict of Interest Policies.  
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve resolution #1 and resolution #2. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item C 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Melissa Huffman explain the item. Melissa 
explained that the lease agreement was for approximately 800 square feet in the University Mall 
that will be used for office space and a place for parents to request information or meet with 
staff.  Melissa further explained that the short term lease is for one year. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the lease agreement. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item D 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Melissa Huffman explain the item. Melissa 
explained that the lease agreement was for that will be used for office space for regional staff.  
Melissa further explained that the short term lease is for one year. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the lease agreement. 
  







 


Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item E 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Adam Miller explain the item.  Adam 
explained that the action item would authorize staff to request that the Hillsborough County 
School District consolidate IDEA Victory Academy and IDEA Victory College Prep into a single 
school, and consolidate IDEA Hope Academy and IDEA Hope College Pep into a single school.  
Adam further explained that the consolidation will have no impact on operations, staffing or 
programs, and will be consistent with how all subsequent and future charter applications and 
contracts will be structured. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the request. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item F 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Adam Miller. Adam explained that the action 
item authorizes staff to file the necessary paperwork with the Florida Division of Corporations to 
create Doing Business As names for each campus. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the request. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item G 
Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Adam Miller explain the item. Adam explained 
that the action item was an Insurance Policy for Directors and Officers liability coverage. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the policy. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Action Item F 







 


Chair Traviesa introduced the item and asked that Adam Miller explain the item. Adam explained 
that the action item authorizes staff to submit a Notice of Intent and draft Performance-Based 
Agreement for IDEA Tampa Campus #4.  Adam explained that the Notice of Intent is substantially 
similar to prior applications and that the Board will receive a negotiated Peformance-Based 
Agreement for approval at a future meeting. 
 
Trey Traviesa looked for a motion to approve the item. 
  
Motion made by: Nick Rhodes 
Second to motion: Lizzette Reynolds 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Member Comments 
None 
 
Adjourn 
Trey Traviesa looks for a motion to adjourn at 10:30am EST 
Motion made by: Lizzette 
Second to motion: Nick Rhodes 
All in favor: Motion carries unanimously 
 
I certify that the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the meeting of the Board of 
Directors of IDEA Florida held on October 27, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 
Lizzette Gonzalez-Reynolds, Board Secretary 
 
 








Florida Social Studies Curriculum Material Proposal 
K-2nd Grade – Lavinia Group’s “Insight Humanities” 


The FL Social Studies Curriculum Manager (CM) contacted all vendors listed on Florida’s state adoption list in order to 
ensure alignment with the Florida standards for K-2.  Additionally, the CM searched for other literacy-based programs 
(Core Knowledge, Benchmark, Gallopade, Actively Learn).  A comprehensive review was completed on 5 programs that 
were aligned to the FL standards as well as 2 knowledge building programs (Core Knowledge and Lavinia).  This review 
was presented to the Advisory Cohort for feedback. 


In the final presentation, the CM proposed the adoption of “Insight Humanities” by the Lavinia Group.  They have a well 
thought out, scripted program that uses authentic children’s literature to build student knowledge.  Additionally, 
through student project work, inquiry methods, and virtual field trips, this program utilizes culturally responsive 
strategies.  Three units per course will be customized to expand Insight Humanities for year-long social studies courses.  
These additional units will more fully address FL content standards, including geography and primary source analysis 
skills. 


Lavinia Group – “Insight Humanities” 


• 5-year commitment for curriculum materials 
K Annual cost per campus (based on 125 students) 


Projected annual costs for project materials/classroom 
Trade books (for read alouds for pre- written units) per teacher – one time 
Trade books (for read alouds for customized units) per teacher – one time 


  $2,125.00 
$200.00 
$627.11 


TBD 
1 Annual cost per campus (based on 125 students) 


Projected annual costs for project materials/classroom 
Trade books (for read alouds for pre-written units) per teacher – one time 
Trade books (for read alouds for customized units) per teacher – one time 


$2,125.00  
$200.00 
$439.04 


TBD 
2 Annual cost per campus (based on 125 students) 


Projected annual costs for project materials/classroom 
Trade books (for read alouds for pre-written units) per teacher – one time 
Trade books (for read alouds for customized units) per teacher – one time 


$2,125.00  
$200.00 
$658.53 


TBD 
 
• Professional Development (cost per campus, year 1) 


o 1 full training day at the beginning of the year - $3,000 
o 5 days of onsite teacher development and coaching - $13,500 
o 3 seats at the Implementation Institute ($1950 value) – Included 


Note: Because of the nature of Lavinia’s work and materials, it is imperative that we finalize our contract no later than 
February 19th. Once the contract is finalized, Lavinia will begin their customizing work and the Curriculum Manager will 
have full access to the current materials to begin lesson planning in advance of the 2021-22 school year. 
 


 


 


 







1 


 


 
 


 


CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 


THIS AGREEMENT entered into  , by and between 
Lavinia Group, LLC (hereinafter "Consultant") and IDEA Florida Inc. (hereinafter "Client"). 


 
WHEREAS, Client wishes to retain Consultant, and Consultant desires to be engaged by Client, 


to perform certain consulting services described herein (the “Consulting Services”); 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 


 
AGREEMENT 


1. Consulting Services. Consultant agrees to provide the following services (in conjunction with 
the Client staff) which may be modified from time to time by agreement in writing with Client. Expected 
time commitment is between February 15, 2021 and June 30, 2026. 


• Custom Curriculum Development. Consultant develops custom Insight Humanities Social 
Studies curriculum units per the proposal dated December 18, 2020 (Exhibit 1). 


• Curriculum Licensing. Consultant grants Client a license to the curriculum materials outlined in 
the attached License Agreement (Exhibit 2). 


 
Client and Consultant agree that Consultant shall function and perform the Consulting Services as an 
independent contractor (as described in Paragraph 6 below). In no event may Consultant execute any 
agreement on behalf of Client. 


 
 


2. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect from February 15, 2021 and shall 
continue through June 30, 2026. At any time during the Term, the parties may agree to extend the 
Agreement, by executing a mutual written agreement to that effect. 


 
3. Consulting Fee. As a full and complete fee for Consultant’s services hereunder, Consultant will 


be paid the following rate: 
 
For curriculum services, Client shall pay the rates outlined in the proposal dated December 18, 2020 
(Exhibit 1). The rates for the 2021-2022 school year are based on the enrollment numbers provided by 
Client in the proposal dated December 18, 2020 (Exhibit 1). The enrollment numbers for rate calculation 
may be adjusted for the succeeding year of the Agreement if provided to Consultant by May 1 of each year. 
Rates may only be adjusted after May 1 if enrollment changes in one grade level by more than fifteen 
percent (15%). 


 
For the 2021-2022 school year, Client will pay Consultant 25% of the annual curriculum costs by March 1, 
2021 ($1,593.75 per campus). Client will pay Consultant the remaining 75% of the annual curriculum costs 
by June 1, 2021 ($4,781.25 per campus). For subsequent years, 100% of the annual curriculum costs are 
due on June 1. 


 
The final payment under this Agreement shall be due June 1, 2025. 







2 


 


 
 


 


4. Expenses. Consultant will be reimbursed for travel expenses to Florida (hotels, flights, car 
services) in accordance with Federal GSA defined per diem rates. Travel expenses exceeding GSA 
per diem rates must be approved by IDEA Florida Inc. prior to incurring expenses. Consultant 
shall not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses related to the Services provided under this 
Agreement unless approved in advance in writing by Client. 


 
 


5. Independent Contractor Status. 
 


a. Consultant is not being engaged by Client on a full-time, exclusive basis and Consultant 
will retain the right to perform Consultant’s services for other third-parties and engage in other 
activities during the term of this Agreement, provided such other services do not create a conflict 
of interest with Client or cause Client to be in violation of any applicable law, rule or regulation. 
Consultant and Client intend and agree that Consultant is an independent contractor and that 
nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the 
relationship of employer and employee, agency, partnership, or joint venture between Client and 
Consultant. Consultant hereby acknowledges and agrees that it will have no authority to enter into 
or incur any obligation or liability on Client’s behalf. 


 
b. Client will not control and will have no right to control the manner, means or method by 


which Consultant performs services. However, Client will have the right to exercise general 
supervision over the results to be derived from Consultant’s services and the date by which such 
services will be completed, and will determine whether such services were satisfactory to Client. 


 
c. Consultant will bear sole responsibility for compliance with all applicable laws and for 


reporting and payment on behalf of Consultant and any of its employees or agents providing 
services to Client pursuant to this Agreement, of any federal, state or local income or 
employment tax or withholding, unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation insurance, 
liability insurance, health insurance, retirement or other welfare or pension benefits, and/or other 
payments and expenses. Consultant understands and agrees that neither Consultant nor any of its 
employees or agents providing services under this Agreement are eligible for, and will not be 
eligible to participate in, any Client employee benefit plans or programs. Consultant, and its 
employees and agents providing services to Client under this Agreement, hereby waive any right 
or claim to wages, compensation incentives, bonuses, profit-sharing participation, unemployment 
insurance, health insurance, or participation in any employee benefit plan, policy or program 
sponsored by Client that may be provided to employees of Client. 


 
d. If at any time there is a challenge to the status of Consultant as an independent contractor, 


or of any of its employees or agents providing services to Client under this Agreement as non-
employees of Client, Consultant agrees promptly to give Client notice thereof and to cooperate 
fully with Client in defending such challenge if so requested. 


 
6. Confidential and Proprietary Information. 


 
(a) Confidential and Proprietary Information; Nondisclosure. As used herein, the term "Confidential 
Information" shall mean all information, compilations, business plans, technical and financial 
information, student data and the like, in whatever form or medium, and whether oral or written and 
whether designated or marked "Confidential," or the like, which (a) relate to the products, services or 







3 


 


 
 


 


business of Client and which have not been disclosed to the general public or which Consultant knows or 
should know are not generally known to the public, (b) are derived from the use or application of the 
foregoing, or (c) is personally identifiable information about a student that has not been otherwise deemed 
“directory information” by pursuant to the federal Family Educational Rights Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. 







4 


 


 
 


 


1232g et seq.). 
 


Consultant acknowledges that Confidential Information constitutes a valuable proprietary asset of 
Client, and that Consultant shall not obtain any right or license to any Confidential Information. 
Consultant agrees that it will not at any time directly or indirectly disclose Confidential Information to 
any person or entity outside of Client or make any use of such Confidential Information in any way, 
other than as is reasonably required to provide the Consulting Services. Consultant agrees not to allow 
any unauthorized person access to Confidential Information and to take all action reasonably necessary 
and satisfactory to protect such Confidential Information. 


 
(b) Intellectual Property. All materials developed or provided by Consultant or its agents 


pursuant to this Agreement, and any know-how, methodologies, equipment, or processes used by 
Consultant to provide the Services to Client including, without limitation, all copyrights, trademarks, 
trade secrets, and other proprietary rights are and will remain the sole and exclusive property of 
Consultant. Unauthorized copying, reverse engineering, and creating unauthorized derivative works 
based on such material is expressly forbidden except as outlined in this Agreement. 


 
7. Representations and Warranties. By executing this Agreement, Consultant represents and 


warrants that: (a) the Services and Deliverables described herein will be performed in a professional 
and workmanlike manner in accordance with the highest standard of care of similar professionals in the 
field; 
(b) use by Client, its affiliates, subsidiaries, assignees and licensees of the materials provided by 
Consultant, if any, will not violate or infringe any patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other 
personal or proprietary rights of any party; (c) Consultant will not enjoin or interfere with the distribution, 
licensing or exploitation of Client’s merchandise or other products. 


 
8. Non-Disparagement. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that at no time during or after 


its engagement with Client will Consultant publicly disparage in any way Client or any of its 
affiliates, subsidiaries, parent companies, employees, officers, agents, shareholders, partners or 
directors. 


9. Compliance with Public Records Laws Consultant shall comply with public records 
laws, to the extent applicable, as set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes;  and shall: 


(a) 1.    Keep and maintain public records required by the Client to perform the 
service. 


• 2.    Upon request from the Client’s custodian of public records, provide 
the Client with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not 
exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by 
law. 


• 3.    Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and 
exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed 
except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and 
following completion of the contract if the CONSULTANT does not 
transfer the records to the Client.4.     


• Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Client all 
public records in possession of the CONSULTANT or keep and 
maintain public records required by the Client to perform the services.  


 







5 


 


 
 


 


 
10. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. While providing services for Client, Consultant (or 


any of its employees or agents providing services to Client pursuant to this Agreement) shall comply 
with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 


 
11. Waiver. Unless agreed in writing, the failure of either party, at any time, to require 


performance by the other of any provisions hereunder shall not affect its right thereafter to enforce the 
same, nor shall a waiver by either party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a 
waiver of any other preceding, succeeding, or simultaneous breach of any term or provision of this 
Agreement. No extension of time for the performance of any obligation or act shall be deemed to be an 
extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act hereunder. 


 
12. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability, in whole or in part, of any covenant, promise, or 


undertaking, or any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of any provision of 
this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions thereof. 


 
13. Governing Law. For all purposes, this Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted, construed 


and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. The parties irrevocably agree to the 







6 


 


 
 


 


exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the state of New York but waive any right to a jury trial.. If any legal 
action is brought by either party arising from, or related to, the subject matter of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party will be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 


 
14. Completeness and Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between 


the parties hereto superseding all prior and contemporaneous agreements or understandings among the 
parties hereto concerning the services contemplated under this Agreement. This Agreement may, without 
further consideration, be amended, modified, superseded or canceled, and any of the terms, covenants, 
representations, warranties or conditions hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument executed by 
the parties. 


 
15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 


shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute but one agreement. 
 


16. Headings. The headings used herein are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the 
meaning or construction or limit the scope or intent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


 
17. Survival. Any termination of this Agreement shall not affect the ongoing provisions of this 


Agreement which shall survive such termination in accordance with their terms. 
 


18. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or which may be given hereunder shall be 
in writing to the party to whom notice is to be given at the addresses set forth above. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered the Agreement as of 


the date first above written. 
 


ACCEPTED AND AGREED: ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 


CLIENT  LAVINIA GROUP, LLC 


 
By:   By:    


 


Name:   Name: Arin Lavinia 
 


Title:   Title: Founder and CEO 







7 


 


 
 


 


Exhibit 1 
 


Insight Humanities™ Social Studies Curriculum 
5 Year Proposal for IDEA Public Schools – 12.18.20 


IDEA Public Schools - Florida 
2021–2026 


 


Curriculum - Florida (Per Year, Per Campus) 


 
Product & Description 


 
Year 


 
Grade 


 
Students Price Per 


Student 
Total 
Price 


Insight Humanities™ Social Studies Kindergarten 
Curriculum Package 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Kindergarten 125 $17.00 
$24.00 


$2,125.00 
$3,000.00 


   
29% 
discount* 


 


3 Customized Insight Humanities™ Social Studies 
Kindergarten Units for IDEA Public Schools Florida 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons aligned to a scope and 
sequence designed by Lavinia Group 
and IDEA Public Schools 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Kindergarten 125 FREE 
$24.00 


FREE 
$3,000.00  


Insight Humanities™ Social Studies Grade 1 
Curriculum Package 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Grade 1 125 $17.00 
$24.00 


$2,125.00 
$3,000.00 


   
29% 
discount* 


 


3 Customized Insight Humanities™ Social Studies 
Grade 1 Units for IDEA Public Schools Florida 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons aligned to a scope and 
sequence designed by Lavinia Group 
and IDEA Public Schools 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Grade 1 125 FREE 
$24.00 


FREE 
$3,000.00  







8 


 


 
 


 


Insight Humanities™ Social Studies Grade 2 
Curriculum Package 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Grade 2 125 $17.00 
$24.00 


 
29% 
discount* 


$2,125.00 
$3,000.00 


3 Customized Insight Humanities™ Social Studies 
Grade 2 Units for IDEA Public Schools Florida 


• 3 complete units with daily scripted 
lessons aligned to a scope and 
sequence designed by Lavinia Group 
and IDEA Public Schools 


• Teacher digital subscriptions for 1 year 
• Consumable student handouts 
• Unit assessments 


2021–2022 Grade 2 125 FREE 
$24.00 


FREE 
$3,000.00  


Standard Rate $18,000.00 


Total Discounts for IDEA* $11,625.00 


Total Curriculum Costs Grades K-2 (Per 
Year, Per Campus) 


$6,375.00 


**The pricing above only reflects grades K-2. As grades 3-5 are added in Florida, the student fee of $17.00 per year will 
apply. 


 
 


Additional Costs (Per Classroom) - Florida 
 


*Trade books can be purchased through 3rd party vendors 
*Classroom project supplies can be ordered through typical classroom supply vendors 


Trade Books: Kindergarten (one time purchase per classroom) $627.11 


Trade Books: Grade 1 (one time purchase per classroom) $439.04 


Trade Books: Grade 2 (one time purchase per classroom) $658.53 


Project Supplies (annual cost per classroom) $200.00 







9 


 


 
 


 


Exhibit 2 


License Agreement 


This License Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the last date set 
forth next to the signatures below (the “Effective Date”), by and between IDEA Public Schools (the 
“Licensee”), and The Lavinia Group, LLC (the “Licensor”) (each a “Party” and collectively, the 
“Parties”). 


 
1. Intellectual Proprietary Rights; License 


1.1 The Curriculum Materials. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Curriculum 
Materials” include all materials reflecting the Insight Humanities curriculum, which includes, 
without limitation, PowerPoint slides, videos, recordings of trainings/meetings, training methods 
described and deployed on paper, Intellectual Prep Agenda methodology and materials, Student 
Work-Study templates, rubrics, lesson plans and overviews, booklists, student-facing materials. The 
Curriculum Materials include, as examples, the following: 


 
Category Curriculum Materials 


Professional 
Development for 
Insight Humanities 


• PPT Slides and handouts 


● Videos 


● Recordings of trainings/meetings 
● Work-Study templates 


● Intellectual Preparation templates 
● Main Idea/Short Response Coaching Guides/Rubrics 


Insight Humanities 
Curriculum ● Insight Humanities Unit overviews, 


corresponding materials 
● Criteria lists and student coaching tools 
● Booklists 


lesson plans, and 


 
Licensee acknowledges and agrees that all Curriculum Materials, whether created prior to this 
Agreement or pursuant to this Agreement, are proprietary to and the exclusive property of Licensor, 
and that Licensor has all right, title and interest in such Curriculum Materials. Licensee has no right 
or license with respect to any Curriculum Materials created or delivered except as expressly licensed 
under Section 1.4 below. 


 
1.2 Licensor’s Mark and Tradename. All Curriculum Materials will include The Lavinia 


Group™ and Lavinia Group Insight Humanities™ trademarks. Licensee agrees to only use this mark 
and not The Lavinia Group™ mark. Licensee may not (and may not permit others to) remove, 
obscure or modify any copyright or other notices, source identifiers and designations (including 
references to Licensor as the source of the Curriculum Materials), logos or trademarks (collectively, 
“Designations”) included in the Curriculum Materials. To the extent that copies of the Curriculum 
Materials are permitted under this Agreement, Licensee shall contractually require the receiving 







10 


 


 
 


 


party to comply with the Designation requirements. Any videos made or broadcasts done by Licensor 
or Licensee will have the trademark visible at all times during the presentations where Licensor’s 
materials or methods are being used. During the scope of the Term of this Agreement, Licensee will 
not advertise the Curriculum Material or any component thereof to be anything other than of The 
Lavinia Group™. To imply otherwise would generate confusion in the marketplace. Licensee agrees 
not to display its mark or tradename in conjunction with any Lavinia Group mark so as to avoid any 
confusion. Upon termination of this Agreement under Section 5, Licensee will cease to use any mark 
associated with Lavinia Group. 


 
1.3 Curriculum Materials Covenants. Licensee, on behalf of itself and each of its directors, 


officers, employees and contractors, agrees and covenants: not to use, share, disclose, publish, or 
distribute the Curriculum Materials, or allow them to be used, shared, disclosed, published, 
communicated, or made available, in whole or part, to any entity or person whatsoever except as 
expressly permitted under this Agreement. 


 


1.4 License. During the term of this Agreement (as set forth in Section 5.1), and subject 
to and conditioned upon Licensee’s timely payment of fees and compliance with and performance 
in accordance with all other terms and conditions of this Agreement, Licensor hereby grants to 
Licensee, a royalty-free, non-transferable, non-sublicensable license to copy, display, distribute, 
exhibit, perform, or otherwise use the Curriculum Materials that Licensor delivers to Licensee 
pursuant to this Agreement for the purpose of implementing the Curriculum Materials to educate 
Licensee’s students, provided, however, that such use of the Curriculum Materials is consistent with 
the contemplated use as described in this Agreement and the use of the trademarks as described in 
Sections 1.1 and 1.2 (the “License”). The License shall automatically terminate upon the termination 
of this Agreement. 


 
1.5 Licensee Materials. Licensee and its licensors are and will remain the sole and 


exclusive owners of all right, title, and interest in and to any of Licensee’s trademarks, copyrights, 
other intellectual property rights, work product (whether created by Licensee or Licensee’s 
employees or contractors, including Master Teachers) (collectively, “Licensee Materials”). Licensor 
understands that this Agreement does not, and will not be construed to, grant Licensor any license 
or right of any nature with respect to the Licensee Materials or any other materials, software, or other 
tools made available to Licensor by the Licensee or its contractors. 


 
1.6 Returns, Destruction of Proprietary Information. Recipient acknowledges and agrees 


that all Curriculum Materials are and shall remain the property of Licensor. By disclosing Curriculum 
Materials, Licensor does not grant directly or indirectly any express or implied right to Licensee 
under any licenses, patents, copyrights, trademarks, know-how or trade secret except as otherwise 
provided herein. Licensee agrees that it will return or destroy all documents and tangible property in 
its possession which contain any part of the Curriculum Materials disclosed to Licensee by Licensor 
hereunder in accordance with Section 5.3. 


 
1.7 Limitation on Use. Licensee shall use the Curriculum Materials only in connection 


with the furtherance of the business relationship between the Parties, and Licensee shall make no 
further use, in whole or in part, of any Curriculum Materials. However, nothing in this Agreement 
shall restrict Licensor from using, disclosing or disseminating the Curriculum Materials in any way. 







11 


 


 
 


 


1.8 Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, 
LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LICENSOR IS PROVIDING THE CURRICULUM 
MATERIALS “AS IS”, AND LICENSOR DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE, MERCHANTABILITY AND NON- INFRINGEMENT. No rights or obligations other 
than those expressly recited herein are implied by this Agreement. 


 
2. Payment 


2.1 Licensee will pay Licensor according to the fee structure outlined in the December 
18, 2020 proposal and subsequent Consulting Agreement, and according to the schedule in the 
Consulting Agreement. 


 
3. Representations and Warranties 


3.1 Licensor’s Representations and Warranties. Licensor represents, warrants and 
covenants that (i) Licensor has the right to enter into this Agreement, to grant the rights granted in 
this Agreement and to perform the obligations in this Agreement; (ii) Licensor will provide the 
Curriculum Materials in compliance with all applicable laws, and regulations; (iii) Licensor’s 
performance of all of the terms of this Agreement and the provision of the Curriculum Materials to 
the Licensee do not and will not breach or conflict with any agreement with a third party; (iv) 
Licensor shall maintain industry standard data security measures; and (v) the Curriculum Materials 
and any electronic files transmitted from Licensor to Licensee will be free of viruses and other 
harmful components. 


 
3.2 Licensee’s Representations and Warranties. Licensee represents, warrants and 


covenants that (i) Licensee has the right to enter into this Agreement, to grant the rights granted in 
this Agreement and to perform the obligations in this Agreement; (ii) Licensee will implement the 
Curriculum Materials, and provide the results thereof, with the highest degree of professional skill 
and expertise; (iii) Licensee’s performance of all of the terms of this Agreement do not and will not 
breach or conflict with any agreement with a third party; and (iv) Licensee shall maintain industry 
standard data security measures. 


 
4. Mutual Indemnification 


 
Each Party to this Agreement (an “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to indemnify, defend and 


settle at its own expense and hold the other Party, including its employees, directors, officers, 
shareholders, affiliates, successors and assigns (an “Indemnified Party”) free and harmless against 
any and all suits, claims, sanctions, losses, damages, charges and expenses of any kind or character 
whatsoever (including civil fines or penalties or reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) incurred 
by or asserted against the Indemnified Party, to the extent caused by the negligence or willful 
misconduct in the performance by the Indemnifying Party of its obligations under this Agreement. 
The Indemnifying Party’s obligations are conditioned upon the Indemnified Party: (a) giving the 
Indemnifying Party prompt written notice of any claim, action, suit or proceeding for which the 
Indemnified Party is seeking indemnity; (b) granting the Indemnifying Party sole control of the 
defense and/or settlement thereof; and (c) the Indemnified Party’s cooperation in any defense and/or 
settlement thereof. The Indemnified Party shall not admit any such claim without prior consent of 
the Indemnifying Party. Without limiting the foregoing, Licensee shall indemnify Licensor for any 







12 


 


 
 


 


losses, injuries, and costs of suits (including reasonable attorney fees and costs) arising out of or 
resulting from Licensee’s use, disclosure, publication or dissemination of the Curriculum Materials, 
except as permitted under this Agreement. 


 
5. Term and Termination 


 
5.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and end 


upon the earlier of (i) June 30, 2026, or (ii) the termination of this Agreement by either Party pursuant 
to Section 5.2 below. 


 
5.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by Licensee upon one week’s 


written notice of termination to Licensor. Licensor may terminate this Agreement at any time, 
provided that Licensee is in material breach of the terms of this Agreement (including Licensee’s 
payment obligations to Licensor). Material breach shall be effective only after Licensor has provided 
Licensee with written notice of material breach, specifying exactly how Licensee has allegedly 
breached the Agreement, and Licensee has failed to cure such breach within ten (10) days of 
receiving such written notice. 


 
5.3 Effect of Termination. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any 


reason, Licensee shall pay to Licensor all fees owing to Licensor as of the date of expiration or 
termination, to be calculated on a pro-rata, daily basis. All such payments shall be made to Licensor 
within 30 days of termination. After such expiration or termination, Licensee shall: 


(a) Promptly: (i) deliver to Licensor all tangible documents and materials (and 
any copies) in Licensee’s possession, custody or control containing, reflecting, incorporating, 
or based on the Curriculum Materials; and (ii) permanently erase all such materials from 
Licensee’s computer systems; and 


(b) Upon request of Licensor, certify in writing to Licensor that Licensee has 
complied with the requirements of this Section 5.3. 


5.4 Survival. The terms and conditions of this clause and Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, and 6 shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 


6. Miscellaneous 
 


6.1 Notices. All notices and other communications given or made pursuant to this 
Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed effectively given: (a) upon personal delivery to the 
Party to be notified; (b) when sent by email or facsimile, at the time the recipient replies or otherwise 
acknowledges receipt (with an automatically emailed response or automated facsimile indication of 
receipt not constituting acknowledgment for purposes of this Section); (c) five days after having been 
sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; or (d) on the date of 
delivery or attempted delivery by a nationally or internationally recognized courier, as shown by the 
records of the courier. Such communications must be sent to the respective Parties at the following 
addresses (or at such other address for a Party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance 
with this Section): 







13 


 


 
 


 


If to Licensee: Idea Public Schools 


2115 W. Pike Blvd 
Weslaco, TX 78596 


 
 
 


If to Licensor: Lavinia Group, LLC 
7 Somers Place 
Sag Harbor, NY 11201 
Attention: Arin Lavinia 
arin@Laviniagroup.org 


 


6.2 Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any 
other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or 
provision in any other jurisdiction. 


6.3 Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of 
the Parties hereto with respect to the specific subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
agreements and undertakings, both written and oral between the Parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof, except as expressly provided herein. This Agreement may not be amended or modified 
except by an instrument in writing signed by Licensor and Licensee. 


 
6.4 Assignment/Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 


benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and designees; 
provided, however, neither Party shall have the right to transfer, assign or delegate its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the other 
Party; provided that either Party may assign or transfer this Agreement to an affiliate or to a parent 
or successor corporation in the event of a merger, acquisition, or reorganization or a sale of 
substantially all of a Party’s business relating to this Agreement. 


 
6.5 Waiver. No waiver by any Party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective 


unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. No waiver by any Party shall 
operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach or default not expressly identified 
by such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether occurring before or 
after that waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege 
arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single 
or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege. 


 
6.6 Governing Law; Conflict Resolution. This Agreement shall be governed by and 


construed in accordance with the internal laws of the New York without giving effect to any choice 
or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the New York or any other jurisdiction). Any legal 
suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based upon this Agreement or the transactions 
contemplated hereby may be instituted in any court of appropriate jurisdiction in New York, and 







14 


 


 
 


 


each Party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in any such suit, action or 
proceeding. 


 
6.7 Counterparts; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each 


of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the 
same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, scanned PDF, email or 
other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of 
an original signed copy of this Agreement. 


 
6.8 Electronic Execution. The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,” and words of 


similar import shall be deemed to include electronic or digital signatures or the keeping of records in 
electronic form, each of which shall be of the same effect, validity and enforceability as manually 
executed signatures or a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be, to the extent and as 
provided for under applicable Law, including the Electronic Signatures in Global and National 
Commerce Act of 2000 (15 USC § 7001 et seq.), the Electronic Signatures and Records Act of 1999 
(NY State Technology Law §§ 301-309), or any other similar state laws based on the Uniform 
Electronic Transactions Act. 


 
 


(signature page follows) 







15 


 


 
 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates 
reflected below. 


 
 


Licensor 
 
 


By:   
Arin Lavinia, Founder and CEO 
7 Somers Place 
Sag Harbor, NY 11963 
arin@laviniagroup.org 


 
 


Licensee 
 
 
By:    


Dated:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:    







1 


 
 


 
 


 


CONSULTING AGREEMENT 
 


THIS AGREEMENT entered into  , by and between 
Lavinia Group, LLC (hereinafter "Consultant") and IDEA Florida Inc. (hereinafter "Client"). 


 
WHEREAS, Client wishes to retain Consultant, and Consultant desires to be engaged by Client, 


to perform certain consulting services described herein (the “Consulting Services”); 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 


 
AGREEMENT 


1. Consulting Services. Consultant agrees to provide the following services (in conjunction with 
the Client staff) which may be modified from time to time by agreement in writing with Client. Expected 
time commitment is between February 15, 2021 and June 30, 2026. 


• Onsite Training 
• Onsite Teacher Development and Coaching 
• Institute Seats 


 
Client and Consultant agree that Consultant shall function and perform the Consulting Services as an 
independent contractor (as described in Paragraph 5 below). In no event may Consultant execute any 
agreement on behalf of Client. 


 
2. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect from February 15, 2021 and shall 


continue through June 30, 2026. At any time during the Term, the parties may agree to extend the 
Agreement, by executing a mutual written agreement to that effect. 


 
3. Consulting Fee. As a full and complete fee for Consultant’s services hereunder, Consultant will 


be paid the following rate: 
 
For professional development services, Client shall pay the rates outlined in the proposal dated December 
18, 2020 (Exhibit 1). 


 
Client will pay Consultant one twelfth (1/12) of the annual costs per campus ($1,375 for professional 
development) on the 1st   of each month, with the first payment due on July 1, 2021. 


 
The final payment under this Agreement shall be due June 1, 2026. 


 
4. Expenses. Consultant will be reimbursed for travel expenses to Florida (hotels, flights, car 


services) in accordance with Federal GSA defined per diem rates. Travel expenses exceeding GSA 
per diem rates must be approved by IDEA Florida Inc. prior to incurring expenses. Consultant shall 
not be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses related to the Services provided under this 
Agreement unless approved in advance in writing by Client. 


 
5. Independent Contractor Status. 


 







2 


 
 


 
 


 


(a) Consultant is not being engaged by Client on a full-time, exclusive basis and Consultant will retain the right 
to perform Consultant’s services for other third parties and engage in other activities during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such other services do not create a conflict of interest with Client or cause Client to be 
in violation of any applicable law, rule or regulation. Consultant and Client intend and agree that Consultant 
is an independent contractor and that nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted or construed as creating 
or establishing the relationship of employer and employee, agency, partnership, or joint venture between 
Client and Consultant. Consultant hereby acknowledges and agrees that it will have no authority to enter 
into or incur any obligation or liability on Client’s behalf. 


 
(b) Client will not control and will have no right to control the manner, means or method by 


which Consultant performs services. However, Client will have the right to exercise general supervision 
over the results to be derived from Consultant’s services and the date by which such services will be 
completed, and will determine whether such services were satisfactory to Client. 


 
(c) Consultant will bear sole responsibility for compliance with all applicable laws and for 


reporting and payment on behalf of Consultant and any of its employees or agents providing services to 
Client pursuant to this Agreement, of any federal, state or local income or employment tax or 
withholding, unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation insurance, liability insurance, health 
insurance, retirement or other welfare or pension benefits, and/or other payments and expenses. 
Consultant understands and agrees that neither Consultant nor any of its employees or agents providing 
services under this Agreement are eligible for, and will not be eligible to participate in, any Client 
employee benefit plans or programs. Consultant, and its employees and agents providing services to 
Client under this Agreement, hereby waive any right or claim to wages, compensation incentives, 
bonuses, profit-sharing participation, unemployment insurance, health insurance, or participation in any 
employee benefit plan, policy or program sponsored by Client that may be provided to employees of 
Client. 


 
(d) If at any time there is a challenge to the status of Consultant as an independent contractor, 


or of any of its employees or agents providing services to Client under this Agreement as non-employees 
of Client, Consultant agrees promptly to give Client notice thereof and to cooperate fully with Client in 
defending such challenge if so requested. 


 
6. Confidential and Proprietary Information. 


 
(a) Confidential and Proprietary Information; Nondisclosure. As used herein, the term "Confidential 
Information" shall mean all information, compilations, business plans, technical and financial 
information, student data and the like, in whatever form or medium, and whether oral or written and 
whether designated or marked "Confidential," or the like, which (a) relate to the products, services or 
business of Client and which have not been disclosed to the general public or which Consultant knows or 
should know are not generally known to the public, (b) are derived from the use or application of the 
foregoing, or (c) is personally identifiable information about a student that has not been otherwise deemed 
“directory information” by pursuant to the federal Family Educational Rights Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. 
1232g et seq.). 


 
 
 


Consultant acknowledges that Confidential Information constitutes a valuable proprietary asset of 







3 


 
 


 
 


 


Client, and that Consultant shall not obtain any right or license to any Confidential Information. 
Consultant agrees that it will not at any time directly or indirectly disclose Confidential Information to 
any person or entity outside of Client or make any use of such Confidential Information in any way, 







4 


 
 


 
 


 


other than as is reasonably required to provide the Consulting Services. Consultant agrees not to allow 
any unauthorized person access to Confidential Information and to take all action reasonably necessary 
and satisfactory to protect such Confidential Information. 


 
(b) Intellectual Property. All materials developed or provided by Consultant or its agents 


pursuant to this Agreement, and any know-how, methodologies, equipment, or processes used by 
Consultant to provide the Services to Client including, without limitation, all copyrights, trademarks, 
trade secrets, and other proprietary rights are and will remain the sole and exclusive property of 
Consultant. Unauthorized copying, reverse engineering, and creating unauthorized derivative works 
based on such material is expressly forbidden except as outlined in this Agreement. 


 
7. Representations and Warranties. By executing this Agreement, Consultant represents and 


warrants that: (a) the Services and Deliverables described herein will be performed in a professional 
and workmanlike manner in accordance with the highest standard of care of similar professionals in the 
field; 
(b) use by Client, its affiliates, subsidiaries, assignees and licensees of the materials provided by 
Consultant, if any, will not violate or infringe any patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other 
personal or proprietary rights of any party; (c) Consultant will not enjoin or interfere with the distribution, 
licensing or exploitation of Client’s merchandise or other products. 
 


 
8. Non-Disparagement. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that at no time during or after 


its engagement with Client will Consultant publicly disparage in any way Client or any of its 
affiliates, subsidiaries, parent companies, employees, officers, agents, shareholders, partners or 
directors. 


 
9. Compliance with Public Records Laws Consultant shall  comply with public records 


laws, to the extent applicable, as set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes;  and shall: 
(a) 1.    Keep and maintain public records required by the Client to perform the 


service. 
• 2.    Upon request from the Client’s custodian of public records, provide 


the Client with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not 
exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by 
law. 


• 3.    Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and 
exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed 
except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and 
following completion of the contract if the CONSULTANT does not 
transfer the records to the City.4.     


• Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Client all 
public records in possession of the CONSULTANT or keep and 
maintain public records required by the Client to perform the services.  


 
10. Consultant’s Employee Screening.  A Florida Law, the Jessica Lundsford Act, requires a 


vendor who will have employees present on charter school property to undergo a Level II 







5 


 
 


 
 


 


background screening, which consists of an FDLE/FBI search if vendor representatives will be at a 
school when students are present, have direct contact with students, or have access to or control of 
school funds. If no personnel will meet any of the three criteria, the law does not apply and no 
action needed. For vendors providing services to charter schools in the Hillsborough District, more 
information may be found at www.sdhc.k12.fl.us/Procurement/JessicaLunsfordAct.asp. Consultant 
agrees to fully comply with all applicable requirements, and demonstrate such compliance to the 
client before employees are on school property. 


 
11. Compliance with Laws and Regulations. While providing services for Client, Consultant (or 


any of its employees or agents providing services to Client pursuant to this Agreement) shall comply 
with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 


 
12. Waiver. Unless agreed in writing, the failure of either party, at any time, to require 


performance by the other of any provisions hereunder shall not affect its right thereafter to enforce the 
same, nor shall a waiver by either party of any breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a 
waiver of any other preceding, succeeding, or simultaneous breach of any term or provision of this 
Agreement. No extension of time for the performance of any obligation or act shall be deemed to be an 
extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act hereunder. 


 
13. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability, in whole or in part, of any covenant, promise, or 


undertaking, or any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word of any provision of 
this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions thereof. 


 
14. Governing Law. For all purposes, this Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted, construed 


and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. The parties irrevocably agree to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the state of New York, but waive any right to a jury trial. If any 
legal action is brought by either party arising from, or related to, the subject matter of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party will be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 


 
15. Completeness and Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the 


parties hereto superseding all prior and contemporaneous agreements or understandings among the parties 
hereto concerning the services contemplated under this Agreement. This Agreement may, without further 
consideration, be amended, modified, superseded or canceled, and any of the terms, covenants, 
representations, warranties or conditions hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument executed by 
the parties. 


 
16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 


shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute but one agreement. 
 


17. Headings. The headings used herein are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the 
meaning or construction or limit the scope or intent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 


 
18. Survival. Any termination of this Agreement shall not affect the ongoing provisions of this 


Agreement which shall survive such termination in accordance with their terms. 
 


19. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or which may be given hereunder shall be 
in writing to the party to whom notice is to be given at the addresses set forth above. 







6 


 
 


 
 


 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered the Agreement as of 


the date first above written. 
 


ACCEPTED AND AGREED: ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 


CLIENT  LAVINIA GROUP, LLC 


 
 


By:   By:    
 


Name:   Name: Arin Lavinia 
 


Title:   Title: Founder and CEO 







7 


 
 


 
 


 


Exhibit 1 
 


IDEA Public Schools - Florida 
Professional Development 


 


Professional Development Bundle (Per Campus) 


Item Year Quantity List 
Price 


Discount* Total 
Price 


Onsite Training Day 2021–2022 1 $3,000.00  $3,000.00 


Onsite Teacher Development and Coaching 
Days 


2021–2022 5 $3,000.00 10% $13,500.00 
$15,000.00 


Insight Humanities Social Studies Implementation 
Institute Seats 


2021–2022 3 $650.00 FREE FREE 
$1,950.00  


Standard Rate $19,950.00 


Total Discounts for IDEA* $3,450.00 


Total Professional Development Costs 
(Per Campus) 


$16,500.00 


 







 
 
 
Jackie Taslim 
jackie@laviniagroup.org 
 
January 29, 2021 
 
Elliott Nguyen 
Director of Procurement 
IDEA Public Schools 
viet.nguyen@ideapublicschools.org 
 
 
Dear Elliot, 
 
I can confirm that all the content we will provide through our curriculum, Insight 
Humanities ™, is the original work of Lavinia Group, and therefore Lavinia Group 
is the rightful copyright owner of the provided content. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jackie Taslim 
Partner, Lavinia Group 





		BOY21 - Procurement - Textbooks - Florida - Curriculum Rationale - Lavinia Group

		BOY21 - Procurement - Florida - Consulting Agreement - Lavinia Group_IDEA Florida_Curriculum_FINAL

		BOY21 - Procurement - Florida - Support Agreement - Lavinia Group_IDEA Florida_Curriculum_FINAL

		BOY 21 - Procurement - Lavinia Group - Copyright Letter















































    


 
 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: 
PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES 


 
IDEA Florida Inc. - is a not-for-profit agency which operates or will operate public charter schools in Hillsborough  and 
Duval  School Districts.  We are requesting proposals for an independent auditor to conduct our annual audits in 
accordance with Florida Statutes 1002.33(9) and 218.391. All of the information to assist with developing your proposal 
can be found within this RFP.   


RFP INFORMATION AT A GLANCE 


Bid Title: Professional Auditing Services 
Send Proposals To: IDEA Florida Inc., care of Travis Markey,  


 
 
Email: Travis.Markey@ideapublicschools.org 


Due Date & Time: Wednesday, May, 22, 2013 at 3:00pm 
Contact Information: Travis Markey 


Director of Finance 
Phone: (225) 888-6187 
Email: Travis.Markey@ideapublicschools.org 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Contents 
I.  INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL INFORMATION .......................................................................................................................... 3 


A. General Information and Term of Engagement ............................................................................................................. 3 


B. Information and Clarification .......................................................................................................................................... 3 


C. Presentation Costs .......................................................................................................................................................... 3 


D. Submission of Proposals ................................................................................................................................................. 3 


II. Nature of Services Required ........................................................................................................................................... 3 


A. General ........................................................................................................................................................................... 3 


B. Scope of Work to Be Performed ................................................................................................................................. 3 


C. Auditing Standards to Be Followed ................................................................................................................................. 3 


D. Reports to Be Issued ................................................................................................................................................... 4 


III. Description Of The IDEA Florida Charter School ......................................................................................................... 4 


A. Name and Telephone Number of Contact Persons .................................................................................................... 4 


B. Background Information ............................................................................................................................................. 4 


C. Fund Structure ............................................................................................................................................................ 4 


D. Annual Budget ............................................................................................................................................................. 5 







    


IV. Time Requirements ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 


A. Time Schedule for Each Fiscal Year's Audit ..................................................................................................................... 5 


1. Audit Plans: ............................................................................................................................................................. 5 


2. Fieldwork: ................................................................................................................................................................ 5 


3. Issuance of Reports and Financial Statement Attestation: ..................................................................................... 5 


V. Assistance to Be Provided to the Auditor and Report Preparation .................................................................................... 5 


A. Finance Department Support ..................................................................................................................................... 5 


B.  Work Area, Telephones, Photocopying and Fax Machines ........................................................................................ 5 


C. Report Preparation ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 


D. Non-Confidentiality of Information ............................................................................................................................ 6 


VI. Proposal Requirements ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 


A. Submission of Proposals ................................................................................................................................................. 6 


B. Proposal Format .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 


1. Title Page: ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 


2. Table of Contents .................................................................................................................................................... 6 


3. Transmittal Letter: .................................................................................................................................................. 6 


4. Detailed Proposal: ................................................................................................................................................... 6 


C. Technical Proposal: ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 


1. General Requirements ............................................................................................................................................ 6 


2.  License to Practice in Florida .................................................................................................................................. 7 


3.  Firm Qualifications and Experience ........................................................................................................................ 7 


4. Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience ............................................................................... 7 


5. Similar Engagements with Other Charter Schools .................................................................................................. 7 


6. Specific Audit Approach .......................................................................................................................................... 8 


D. Price Proposal and Manner of Payment ..................................................................................................................... 8 


1. Price Proposal.............................................................................................................................................................. 8 


2. Manner of Payment .................................................................................................................................................... 8 


VII. Evaluation Procedures ................................................................................................................................................ 8 


A. Selection of Committee .............................................................................................................................................. 8 


B. Evaluation Criteria ....................................................................................................................................................... 8 


 
  







    


I.  INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL INFORMATION 


A. General Information and Term of Engagement 
IDEA Florida) is requesting proposals from qualified independent Certified Public Accounting firms to audit 
its financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and the two fiscal years thereafter, subject 
to an annual renewal of the engagement after the 3rd year. This is a Financial Audit as required under 
Section 218.39, Florida Statutes. No charter schools are expected to be open for the 20-21 fiscal year, but 
the audit will need to be done at the not-for-profit entity level. In 2021 2 schools will be operating in 
Hillsborough, and separate audits will need to be done at the school level for each charter school   


We Would also note that any entity that is auditing IPS Enterprises inc. is not eligible for this procurement. 


 Hillsborough County Duval County 
2020-2021 0 Schools 0 Schools 
2021-2022 2 Schools 0 Schools 
2022-2023 3 Schools 2 Schools 


 


B. Information and Clarification 
All requests for information or clarification regarding this proposal should be addressed to Travis Markey, 
whose contact information is included on the first page of this RFP.  


C. Presentation Costs 
IDEA Florida shall not be liable for any costs, fees or expenses incurred by any firm in responding to the 
Request for Proposal or any subsequent inquiries or presentation relating to a response.  


D. Submission of Proposals 
We ask that all proposals be emailed to us at Travis.Markey@ideapublicschools.org for review.   


II. Nature of Services Required 


A. General 
IDEA Florida is soliciting the services of qualified firms of certified public accountants to audit its financial 
statement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, and the two subsequent years. This audit is to be 
performed in accordance with the provisions contained in this request for proposal.  


B. Scope of Work to Be Performed 
IDEA Florida desires the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of its basic financial 
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the financial reporting requirement of Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 34. For the 
20-21  year there will be an audit at the not for profit entity level, for every other year the audit will be at 
the charter schools under the not for profit level. 


C. Auditing Standards to Be Followed 
To meet the requirements of this Request for Proposal, the audit shall be performed in accordance with 


• Generally accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute of Certified, Public 
Accountants 


• Generally accepted government auditing standards as promulgated by the General Accounting 
Office 


• The requirements established by the Auditor General of the State of Florida 



mailto:Travis.Markey@ideapublicschools.org





    


• Other applicable federal, state and local laws or regulations. 


D. Reports to Be Issued 
Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year's financial statements, the auditor shall issue the 
following:  


 


• A report on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements as a whole, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  


• A report on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of financial statements 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  


• A report on compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  
 


In the required reports on internal controls, the auditor shall communicate any reportable conditions 
found during the audit. A reportable condition shall be defined as a significant deficiency in the design or 
operation of the internal control which could adversely affect the organization's ability to record, process 
summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial 
statements.  


Reportable conditions that are also material weaknesses shall be identified as such in the report.  


Non-reportable conditions discovered by the auditors shall be reported in a separate letter to 
management, which shall be referred to in the reports on internal controls.  


The report on compliance shall include all material instances of noncompliance. All nonmaterial instances 
of noncompliance shall be reported in a separate management letter, which shall be referred to in the 
report on compliance.  


The auditors shall be required to make an immediate, written report of all irregularities and illegal acts of 
which they become aware to IDEA Florida and the Board of Directors of IDEA Florida.  


E. Form 990 
IDEA Florida also intends for the auditor to complete the annual form 990 for submission to the IRS.  


 


III. Description of The IDEA Florida, Inc. Charter Schools 


A. Name and Telephone Number of Contact Persons 
The auditor's primary contact with the IDEA Florida Charter School will be Travis Markey. 


B. Background Information 
IDEA Florida was established as a 501 c3 nonprofit organization for the purposes of operating public 
charter schools.   Each school operates under a performance-based agreement (Charter contract) granted  
by the School Districts in which the schools are located. 


The IDEA Florida fiscal year begins on July 1, and ends on June 30. Budgets are adopted annually, and 
expenditures are controlled in accordance with written policies and procedures.  


C. Fund Structure 
The IDEA Florida currently uses the following fund types and account groups in it financial reporting: 







    


Fund Type / Account Group # of Individual Funds 
General Fund 1 Fund 
Agency Fund 1 Fund 


D. Annual Budget 
The IDEA Florida annual budget consists of approximately $11,493,880 in revenue, and the IDEA Florida 
current approximate net assets are valued at $3,250,000. IDEA Florida projected revenue for the years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2023 are $33,815,398 and $45,707,963 respectively.  


 


 


IV. Time Requirements 


A. Time Schedule for Each Fiscal Year's Audit  
The IDEA Florida and Auditors will mutually agree on a time- table to be developed for the audit of each 
fiscal year. The schedule shall include dates for completing each of the following steps by the auditors no 
later than the agreed upon date for each year of the audit. Each of the following shall be completed by the 
auditor no later than the dates indicated.  


1. Audit Plans: 
The auditor shall provide a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to be prepared by the IDEA Florida 
Charter School by June 30 of each year.  


2. Fieldwork: 
The auditor shall complete all fieldwork by August 30 of each year.  


3.  Issuance of Reports and Financial Statement Attestation: 
The auditor shall have ready for publication all reports denoted in Section II.D. of this Request for Proposal 
by September 30 of each year (this is the due date provided by the charter agreement).  


V. Assistance to Be Provided to the Auditor and Report Preparation  


A. Finance Department Support  
The finance department of IDEA Florida will be available during the audit to assist the firm by providing 
information, documentation and explanations. The preparation of confirmations will be the responsibility 
of IDEA Florida.  


B.  Work Area, Telephones, Photocopying and Fax Machines  
For necessary on-site work, IDEA Florida will provide the auditor with reasonable work space, desks and 
chairs. The auditor will also be provided with access to telephone lines, photocopying facilities and fax 
machines at no charge to the auditor.  


C. Report Preparation  
The auditor will prepare a draft of the financial statements and related notes. The auditor will provide the 
draft to the Executive Director for review and approval prior to issuance. Pro form as and editing will be 
the responsibility of the Auditor. Report preparation and printing shall also be the responsibility of the 
Auditor. The Auditor shall be responsible for providing 15 copies of the annual financial reports to IDEA 
Florida.  







    


D. Non-Confidentiality of Information  
IDEA Florida reserves the right to retain all copies of vendor proposals submitted in response to this 
Request for Proposals.  You are hereby notified that under FS 119.07, ("Florida’s Sunshine Law") proposals 
submitted in response to this solicitation cannot be granted immunity from public scrutiny.  All 
information submitted must be made available to the public for examination, if so requested.  Vendor 
requests to hold certain submitted materials in confidence cannot be honored.  If it is essential to your 
organization that certain materials are kept confidential, and they are a required element of this Request 
for Proposal, it is recommended that you decline to respond to this solicitation. 


 


VI. Proposal Requirements  


A. Submission of Proposals  
To be considered, the proposal must be received by the IDEA Florida Charter School by 5:00pm on March 
12, 2021.  


The Proposal shall be signed by a representative who is authorized to contractually bind the firm.  


Any questions by prospective Proposers concerning this RFP shall be addressed in writing through e-mail 
to IDEA Florida Charter School's contact person, Travis Markey, as soon as possible. No verbal 
communications shall be binding.  


Each Proposal shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise delineation 
of the firm's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the Request for Proposal. The emphasis in each 
Proposal must be on completeness and clarity of content.  


B. Proposal Format  
The following material should be submitted for a proposing firm to be considered:  


1. Title Page: 
Title page showing the Request for Proposals subject; the firm's name; the name, address and telephone 
number of the contact person, and the date of the proposal. 


2. Table of Contents 


3. Transmittal Letter: 
A signed letter of transmittal briefly stating the proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the 
commitment to perform the work within the time period, a statement why the firm believes itself to be 
best qualified to perform the engagement and a statement that the proposal is a firm and irrevocable 
offer.  


4. Detailed Proposal: 
The detailed proposal should follow the order set forth in Section VI.C. of this Request for Proposal. 


C. Technical Proposal: 


1. General Requirements 
The purpose of the Technical Proposal is to determine the qualifications, competence and capacity of the 
firms seeking to undertake an independent audit of IDEA Florida Charter Schools in conformity with the 
requirements of this Request for Proposals. As such, the substance of proposals will carry more weight 
than their form or manner of presentation. The Technical Proposal should demonstrate the qualifications 







    


of the firm and of the particular staff to be assigned to this engagement. It should also specify an audit 
approach that will meet the request for proposal requirements.  


The Technical Proposal should address all the points outlined in the Request for Proposals. While 
additional data may be presented, the following subjects must be included.  


2.  License to Practice in Florida  
An affirmative statement should be included, indicating that the firm and all assigned supervisory 
professional staff are properly licensed to practice in Florida and qualified to perform governmental 
audits.  


3.  Firm Qualifications and Experience 
The Request for Proposal should state the size of the firm's governmental staff, the location of the office 
from which the work on this engagement is to be performed and the number and level of the professional 
staff to be employed in this engagement on a full-time basis and the number and level of the staff to be so 
employed on a part-time basis. 


If the firm is a joint venture or consortium, the qualifications of each firm comprising the joint venture or 
consortium should be separately identified, and the firm that is to serve as the principal auditor should be 
noted, if applicable. 


In a joint Request for Proposal, the principal firm should complete and sign the Request for Proposal 
Signature Page, and the structure, duties and responsibilities of each firm should be clearly delineated. 


Each firm is also required to submit a copy of the report on its most recent peer review, including the 
related letter of comments and the firm’s response to the letter of comments. This should also include a 
statement whether that peer review included a review of specific local government engagements. 


The firm shall also provide information on the results of any federal or state desk reviews or field reviews 
of its audits during the past three (3) years. In addition, the firm shall provide information on the 
circumstances and status of any disciplinary action taken or pending against the firm during the past three 
(3) years with state regulatory bodies or professional organizations. The firm shall provide an explanation 
of all pending, local office litigation as well as all litigation related to the firm's audits of State or Local 
Government entities. 


4.  Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience 
The firm should identify the principal supervisory and management staff, including engagement partners, 
managers, other supervisors and specialists who would be assigned to the engagement and indicate 
whether each such person is licensed to practice as a certified public account in Florida. The firm also 
should provide information on the number of years performing government audits as well as the auditing 
experience of each person, including information on relevant continuing professional education for the 
past two (2) years and membership in professional organizations relevant to the performance of this 
audit. 


The firm should provide as much information as possible regarding the number, qualifications, experience 
and training, including relevant continuing professional education, of the specific staff to be assigned to 
this engagement. The firm also should indicate how the quality of staff over the term of the agreement 
will be assured. 


5. Similar Engagements with Other Charter Schools 
For the firm's office that will be assigned responsibility for the audit, provide a list of charter School audit 
engagements performed in the last two years and include the name and phone number of the customer 
point of contact for each audit engagement. 







    


6. Specific Audit Approach 
The Proposal should set forth a work plan, including an explanation of the audit methodology to be 
followed, to perform the services required in Section II of this Request for Proposal. In developing the 
work plan, reference should be made to such sources of information as the IDEA Florida Charter School's 
budget and related materials, organization charts, manuals and programs and financial and other 
management information systems. 


Proposers will be required to provide the following information on their audit approach: 


A. Proposed Segmentation of the engagement 
B. Level of staff to be assigned to each proposed segment of the engagement 
C. Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the engagement,  
D. Approach to be taken to gain and document an understanding of the IDEA Florida Charter School's 


internal control structure 
E. Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject to audit test work 
F. Approach to be taken in drawing audit samples for purposes of testing 


 


Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems 


The Request for Proposal should identify and describe any anticipated potential audit problems, the firm's 
approach to resolving these problems and any special assistance that will be requested from the staff of 
the IDEA Florida Charter School or their agents.  


D. Price Proposal and Manner of Payment 


1. Price Proposal 
The price proposal should contain all pricing information relative to performing the audit engagement as 
described in this request for proposals. The total all-inclusive maximum price proposal is to contain all 
direct and indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses. The price shall be expressed as a total price 
per each fiscal year of the audit, extending out 3 fiscal years. 


2. Manner of Payment 
Progress payments will be made on the basis of hours of work completed during the course of the 
engagement. 


VII. Evaluation Procedures 


A. Selection of Committee 
All responsive Proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposal will be evaluated by a 
selection committee. Proposals will be evaluated using the information in accordance with Florida Statute 
218.391 and shall include, but are not limited to, ability of personnel, experience, ability to furnish the 
required services, and such factors may be determined by the audit committee to be applicable to its 
particular requirements.  


B. Evaluation Criteria 
Explanation of Criteria Possible Points 


Understanding of task and proposed plan + 0 to 10 
Experience & qualifications of firm 
                       Experience with Charter Schools 
                       Experience with governmental entities 


 
+ 0 to 5 
+ 0 to 5 


Experiences & qualifications of personnel  







    


                       Audit Team 
                       Primary Contact 
                       Missing Resumes 


+0 to 20 
+0 to 10 
-5 each (-20 max) 


Time Frames disqualified (if not able to meet 
9/30/21), and subsequent year 
9/30 timeline. 


References +0 to 5 for each positive reference  
(max 20 points) 


Costs + 20 for lowest rate 
+15 for second lowest rate 
+10 for third lowest rate 
+0 all others 


 





		I.  Introduction And General Information

		A. General Information and Term of Engagement

		B. Information and Clarification

		C. Presentation Costs

		D. Submission of Proposals



		II. Nature of Services Required

		A. General

		B. Scope of Work to Be Performed

		C. Auditing Standards to Be Followed

		D. Reports to Be Issued

		E. Form 990



		III. Description of The IDEA Florida, Inc. Charter Schools

		A. Name and Telephone Number of Contact Persons

		B. Background Information

		C. Fund Structure

		D. Annual Budget



		IV. Time Requirements

		A. Time Schedule for Each Fiscal Year's Audit

		1. Audit Plans:

		2. Fieldwork:

		3.  Issuance of Reports and Financial Statement Attestation:





		V. Assistance to Be Provided to the Auditor and Report Preparation

		A. Finance Department Support

		B.  Work Area, Telephones, Photocopying and Fax Machines

		C. Report Preparation

		D. Non-Confidentiality of Information



		VI. Proposal Requirements

		A. Submission of Proposals

		B. Proposal Format

		1. Title Page:

		2. Table of Contents

		3. Transmittal Letter:

		4. Detailed Proposal:



		C. Technical Proposal:

		1. General Requirements

		2.  License to Practice in Florida

		3.  Firm Qualifications and Experience

		4.  Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience

		5. Similar Engagements with Other Charter Schools

		6. Specific Audit Approach



		D. Price Proposal and Manner of Payment

		1. Price Proposal

		2. Manner of Payment





		VII. Evaluation Procedures

		A. Selection of Committee

		B. Evaluation Criteria








Meal Charge Policy & Procedures 


This institution is an equal opportunity provider.            Florida_Updated 12.9.2020 GRH 


Introduction 
The goal of IDEA Public School’s (IDEA) Child Nutrition Program (CNP) is to provide students with healthy meals 
each day.  The purpose of this policy is for IDEA CNP to be compliant with federal, state & local policy, and to 
provide oversight and accountability for the collection of outstanding student meal balances. 


Parents may provide their own child with breakfast, lunch, or snacks.  To ensure the health and safety of students 
with food allergies, intolerances and special diets, students may not share food from home with other students.  For 
more information, see the Wellness Policy at the IDEA Website referenced in the contact information below.  


As per the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), disabled students and students with free eligibilities 
cannot be denied a reimbursable meal even if the student has accrued a negative balance.   


Free and Reduced Meal Applications 
Families are asked to complete a Free and Reduced Meal (FARM) application before the beginning of the academic 
year. Only one application for all students in the household is needed. The FARM application is provided to CNP 
by the state agency and is used to determine if students and/or families qualify for free or reduced-priced lunch for 
the academic year.  FARM applications for the 2021-2022 school year can be submitted beginning July 1, 2021. 
The FARM application is available to families online at www.schoolcafe.com.  The application is also available for 
physical pick up at the school. Parents/guardians can pick up the application, complete it, and submit it to the 
Cafeteria Manager at their respective school for processing. Families also have the option of printing the FARM 
application from IDEA CNP website at https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp. Parents/guardians can print the 
application, complete it, and submit it to the Cafeteria Manager at their respective school. Families are encouraged 
to complete and submit the application before the first day of school.  


Eligibility Changes 
Households may update their meal application throughout the school year by contacting the cafeteria manager or 
reapplying online if the household has experienced any changes.  For example, if the household size increases, 
changes in income occur, or the household begins to receive SNAP, TANF or other benefits (such as unemployment 
benefits), the household may update their meal application.  Negative balances resulting from eligibility changes 
for free eligible students are not collected from households by IDEA CNP.  IDEA must subsidize the nonprofit 
school food service account for those meals annually. 


Transfer Students & 30-Day Carryover 
New students transferring to a non-CEP IDEA school from a Special Provision or CEP district will receive a 
carryover eligibility of free for the first 30 operating days of enrollment or until a new eligibility determination is 
made with the submission of a FARM application, whichever comes first.  


New Students 
New students enrolling in a non-CEP IDEA school who did not transfer from a CEP district, will have a meal status 
of paid on the first day of school until a FARM application is submitted by the household and processed by IDEA 
CNP.  Cafeteria management will do everything possible to collect a meal application.   


Menu Pricing & Negative Balances 
Menu pricing for CEP schools and schools that do not qualify for CEP can be found at 
https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp. Schools that qualify for CEP for the academic school year offer free 
breakfast and lunch to all students.  For students that attend a non-CEP school for the academic school year, lunch 
meal charges will be based on eligibility determined using information provided by the household on the FARM 



http://www.schoolcafe.com/

https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp





 


 Meal Charge Policy & Procedures 
 


This institution is an equal opportunity provider.                                                                                        Florida_Updated 12.9.2020 GRH 


application.  A lunch meal costs $2.85 for full-priced students (household did not qualify for free or reduced-priced 
benefits). 
 
When a student’s account has a 1-meal debt or more outstanding, a negative balance notification letter and a meal 
application is sent home with the student by cafeteria management.  When a student’s account has a 1-meal debt or 
more outstanding, School Messengers (automated emails and pre-recorded phone calls) are also sent to households 
to remind parents/guardians to provide payment.   
 
When a student’s prepaid account reaches -$42.75 (a 15-meal debt) or more, the Assistant Principal of Operations 
(APO) contacts the household. School officials investigate the situation more closely and take further action as 
needed.  Cafeteria management provides a list of the students that fit these criteria on a weekly basis.  APOs can 
adjust the dollar threshold amount at which they contact the household.  
 
When a student’s prepaid account reaches -$57.00 (a 20-meal debt) or more, the household is notified for a meeting 
with school leaders and cafeteria management.  School leaders can adjust the dollar threshold amount at which they 
are involved with household meeting. 
 
 
Excess Balance Donation  
At the end of the academic school year, families have the option to donate any leftover funds remaining in their 
student’s school lunch account. The donations are made to an account for students in need, and the donations in this 
account are made available to children who do not have the funds needed to pay for their lunch during the school 
day. 
 
Families that do not make a donation will have their full account balance carried over into the next school year or 
have the option to request a refund. Families that donate a portion of their remaining balance (e.g., “up to $5.00”) 
will also have any amount above this portion carried over or refunded. 
 
To donate leftover funds, families can donate by completing the “Statement of Consent for Donation” form found 
at  https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp. The form is also available at the school cafeteria.  
 
Courtesy Meals 
IDEA CNP may provide a courtesy meal for students who receive full-priced eligibility but do not have money to 
pay.  A courtesy meal consists of a cheese sandwich, milk, fruit, and vegetable.  Courtesy meals are offered at no 
charge to students with negative meal balances.  School leaders decide if courtesy meals are implemented at their 
school.  They will also decide the negative dollar amount threshold at which courtesy meals will be implemented.  
 
CNP must document and communicate to the state agency which IDEA schools have courtesy meals as part of the 
policy statement of collection procedures.  If school leaders decide to implement courtesy meals, please contact 
cafeteria management to complete the “Courtesy Meal Implementation Form”.  To be compliant with IDEA local 
policy, the courtesy meal implementation form must be signed and submitted in order to be able to communicate to 
the state agency that schools will implement courtesy meals. 
 
For schools who decide to implement courtesy meals, all household notifications listed in section titled Menu 
Pricing & Negative Balances must be sent out before implementation.  A courtesy meal notification must be 
included in each of the household notifications previously listed. 
 
Every effort is made to contact the household before the school implements a courtesy meal.  The household must 



https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp/

Geena Huerta

Removed Reduced Price Elimination paragraph from doc submitted for Board Approval on 2/12. Will add back once allowability is confirmed.







 


 Meal Charge Policy & Procedures 
 


This institution is an equal opportunity provider.                                                                                        Florida_Updated 12.9.2020 GRH 


be notified via a telephone call from cafeteria management and a courtesy meal letter must be sent home with the 
student 1 week before implementing out the courtesy meal.   
 
The cycle of courtesy meals is as follows:   
A student may not be on a courtesy meal longer than 10 consecutive school days.  Once this time frame is met the 
student will no longer receive a courtesy meal for the next 30 days, regardless of receipt of payment.  If after 10 
consecutive school days, payment has not been received from the household, school officials will investigate the 
situation more closely and take further action as needed.  To the extent of contacting local authorities as 
recommended by USDA, as they consider necessary.  Once the 30-day grace period is met if the balance has not 
been paid the school official may implement a courtesy meal again.  
 
For any student who has a medical statement for a meal accommodation, the courtesy meal served to that student 
must still meet the required accommodations. 
 
Preventing Overt Identification 
Cafeteria management must identify students receiving a courtesy meal before they go through the serving line.  
Once the student is identified, cafeteria staff must discreetly notify the student that they are receiving a courtesy 
meal for the day.   
 
If a student is not identified before they proceed through the serving line, it is not allowed to take the student’s plate 
away at the point of sale.  Cafeteria management allows the student to proceed with their plate and must charge the 
meal taken to the student’s account. 
 
Courtesy meals must be recorded by CNP in the point of sale system (POS) by selecting the Courtesy Meal button.  
In order to reduce the possibility of overt identification, courtesy meals are made available to all students as a menu 
choice in the serving line and for sale as an A la Carte item during lunch service.  Courtesy meals sold A la Carte 
are recorded by CNP in the POS by selecting the A la Carte Courtesy Meal button. 
 
The chart below provides preferred alternatives to actions that single out students with unpaid meal charges or low 
account balances.   
 


Prohibited Actions Required Actions 


Announcing or publicizing the names of students with 
unpaid meal charges. 


Communicating privately with individual families 
about their student’s outstanding balance. 


Requiring students with unpaid meal charges to use a 
different serving line to pick up an alternate meal. 


Serving students with unpaid meal charges the regular 
reimbursable meal or a courtesy meal in the same 
serving line. 


Using hand stamps, stickers, or other physical markers 
to identify students with meal charge debt. 


Communicating payment reminders directly to adults 
in the family over the phone, email, or letter. 


Sending clearly marked notices home with students 
who have an outstanding balance. 


Sending discrete reminders in a plain, white envelope, 
or sending reminders with other communication 
materials to all families. 


Enlisting volunteers, especially parents or guardians of 
other students, to request payment from a family with 
unpaid meal charges.   


Allowing only appropriate officials trained on USDA’s 
confidentiality requirements who have a need to access 
a child’s account balance or eligibility information to 
request payment from families with unpaid meal 
charges. 







 


 Meal Charge Policy & Procedures 
 


This institution is an equal opportunity provider.                                                                                        Florida_Updated 12.9.2020 GRH 


Suggesting or requiring student with unpaid meal 
charges to work for a meal to pay back their debt. 


Working with families to develop a payment plan to 
pay back meal charge debt. 


Throwing a child’s meal in the trash or denying a meal 
if they are unable to pay. 


Serving student who are unable to pay the regular 
reimbursable meal or a courtesy meal. 


 
Non-Reimbursable Meals 
CNP encourages all students to take reimbursable meals.  Whether at a CEP or non-CEP school, if a student takes 
a non-reimbursable or an incomplete meal, a fee will be charged regardless of student eligibility.  Balances incurred 
for non-reimbursable or incomplete meals are collected by CNP. 
 
A La Carte Charges 
A la Carte transactions may not be charged on a student account with insufficient funds to cover the purchase. This 
applies to students at CEP and non-CEP schools. 
 
No a la Carte items may be charged on a student account unless written communication has been received from the 
household by completing the “A La Carte on Account Charges” form.  Balances incurred for A la Carte purchases 
will be collected by CNP.  A la Carte purchases include snacks and menu items.  The “A La Carte on Account 
Charges” form can be found at https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp. Parents/guardians can print the form, 
complete it, and return it to their respective Cafeteria Manager.  
 
Households may establish a limit on the amount of prepaid funds a student may spend each day and whether a 
student can purchase a la carte by setting restrictions through School Café at https://www.schoolcafe.com.  This 
gives the parent greater control of students’ unpaid meal charges. 
 
Payment 
Parents may make payments to their students account and monitor their child’s meal balances by contacting their 
cafeteria manager or by logging onto: https://www.schoolcafe.com.  Parents are encouraged to set low balance e-
mail reminders on their account. 
 
Cash, money orders, and checks are acceptable methods of payment.  These payments are made at your IDEA’s 
cafeteria or designated area.  
 
IDEA CNP offers payment plans on all negative balance accounts.  To elect this option, households may contact 
their school cafeteria management.  CNP will not apply a fee over the price of the meal or apply interest in 
connection with meals purchased or payment plans. 
 
Outstanding Student Debt 
Outstanding student debt (also called bad debt) resulting from nonpayment for school meals is not an allowable cost 
to IDEA CNP’s school food service account and cannot be absorbed by IDEA CNP at the end of the school year or 
carried forward.  If IDEA CNP allows the students to accumulate charges, and those charges are not paid (i.e., 
parents do not put money into a child’s account), IDEA must subsidize the nonprofit school food service account 
for all unpaid meals.  CNP maintains all documentation to substantiate a transfer of all unpaid meal debt to the 
school food service account each year. 
 
Adult Meal & A La Carte Charges 
Adult meals or A la Carte transactions may not be charged on an account with insufficient funds to cover the 
purchase.  Adult meals cannot be charged to a student account. Adult meal pricing can be found at 
https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp.  Adults, including school staff, are encouraged to create an account at 



https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp/

https://www.schoolcafe.com/

https://www.schoolcafe.com/

https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp/





Meal Charge Policy & Procedures 


This institution is an equal opportunity provider.            Florida_Updated 12.9.2020 GRH 


www.schoolcafe.com to prepay for adult meals and a la carte charges. The cafeteria accepts cash and checks for 
payment of adult meals and a la carte charges.  


CNP Contact Information 


You may obtain important documents such as our menu, menu prices, Meal Charge Policy & Procedures, FARM 
applications, “Statement of Consent for Donation” form, “A La Carte on Account Charges” form, and “Courtesy 
Meal Implementation” form by visiting our website at https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp. 


For additional questions, please call (956) 377-8236 or email cnp@ideapublicschools.org. 
This policy is reviewed on an annual basis by CNP. 


___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations 
and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering 
USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or 
reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA. 
Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, 
large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they 
applied for benefits.  Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA 
through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.  Additionally, program information may be made available 
in languages other than English. 
To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, 
(AD-3027) found online at: How to File a Complaint, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to 
USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint 
form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: 


1. mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;


2. fax: (202) 690-7442; or
3. email: program.intake@usda.gov.


This institution is an equal opportunity provider. 



http://www.schoolcafe.com/

https://ideapublicschools.org/parents/cnp/

mailto:cnp@ideapublicschools.org

https://www.usda.gov/sites/default/files/documents/USDA-OASCR%20P-Complaint-Form-0508-0002-508-11-28-17Fax2Mail.pdf

https://www.usda.gov/oascr/how-to-file-a-program-discrimination-complaint

mailto:program.intake@usda.gov



		Courtesy Meals

		Payment






RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF IDEA FLORIDA, 
INC. APPROVING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE IPS 
ENTERPRISES—IDEA FLORIDA MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 
(TAMPA II) 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of IDEA Florida, Inc. (the “Company”) 
desires to approve and authorize an amendment to that certain Master Lease Agreement, dated 
September 1, 2020 (the “Lease”) by and between the Company and IPS Enterprises, Inc. (“IPS”) 
related to the Tampa II campus financing; 


WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the Company to 
approve certain amendments to the Lease in order to cure ambiguity in the Lease;  


WHEREAS, under Section 17.3(a) of the Lease, the Board is authorized to amend the 
Lease, with the mutual agreement of IPS, for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or of correcting, 
curing or supplementing any defective provision contained therein or in regard to questions arising 
thereunder which the Company or IPS may deem desirable or necessary and is not inconsistent 
with said section, and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of the 
notes;  


WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the revisions to certain definitions in the Lease 
accomplish the purposes of curing ambiguity and shall not materially adversely affect the interests 
of the holders of the notes, and the Board desires to approve such amendments to the Lease; 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
IDEA FLORIDA, INC., as follows: 


RESOLVED, the Board hereby approves and authorizes certain amendments to the Lease 
attached hereto as Exhibit A; 


RESOLVED FURTHER, the amendments to the Lease shall be effective immediately 
after both the Board and IPS approve the amendments to the Lease; 


RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Board hereby authorizes the officers of the Company 
to take all other actions and do all other things as may be necessary, desirable, or appropriate to 
carry out the obligations or responsibilities for the purpose and intent of this Resolution; 


RESOLVED FURTHER, this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  


 [Signature Page Follows]







 2 


CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY 


The undersigned, as the duly elected Secretary of the Company, certifies that the foregoing 
Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of the Company at a meeting held on February 12, 
2021, at which a quorum was present.   


 


      _____________________________________ 
      Secretary 







 3 


EXHIBIT A 


Section 1.1. Definitions. 


“Adjusted Revenues” means, for any period of calculation, the total of all operating and 
nonoperating revenues of IDEA Florida directly attributable to each Participating Campus, 
including but not limited to State Revenues, federal and local funds for school lunches and other 
food programs, special education, and transportation, including accounts receivable and rights to 
receive the same plus investment and other income or loss of IDEA Florida for such period directly 
attributable to the Facilities or its operations in the Limited Jurisdiction; provided, however, that 
no determination thereof shall take into account (a) any other income or revenues received by IPS 
EnterprisesIDEA Florida from the operation of any other facility located within Florida but 
outside the Limited Jurisdiction or in any other state, (b) income derived from Defeasance 
Obligations that are irrevocably deposited in escrow to pay the principal of or interest on Debt or 
Related Bonds, (c) any gains or losses resulting from the early extinguishment of Debt or the 
reappraisal, reevaluation or write-up of assets, (d) gifts, grants, bequests or donations and income 
thereon that is not expressly dedicated for the benefit of the Facilities or IDEA Florida by the donor 
or grantor or is dedicated for a purpose inconsistent with paying principal and interest on the Notes, 
and (e) net unrealized gain (losses) on investments and Financial Products Agreements; provided 
that the Adjusted Revenues of any Participating Campus are subject to Florida Statutes, Section 
1002.33(17)(b) (2018).  
 
“Debt” means all: 
(i) indebtedness incurred or assumed by IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida for borrowed money or 
for the acquisition, construction or improvement of property other than goods that are acquired in 
the ordinary course of business of IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida; 
(ii) lease obligations of IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida (including this Lease) that, in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, are shown on the liability side of a balance sheet; 
(iii) all indebtedness (other than indebtedness otherwise treated as Debt hereunder) for borrowed 
money for the acquisition, construction or improvement of property or capitalized lease obligations 
guaranteed, directly or indirectly, in any manner by IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida, or in effect 
guaranteed, directly or indirectly, by IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida through an agreement, 
contingent or otherwise, to purchase any such indebtedness or to advance or supply funds for the 
payment or purchase of any such indebtedness or to purchase property or services primarily for 
the purpose of enabling the debtor or seller to make payment of such indebtedness, or to assure the 
owner of the indebtedness against loss, or to supply funds to or in any other manner invest in the 
debtor (including any agreement to pay for property or services irrespective of whether or not such 
property is delivered or such services are rendered), or otherwise; and 
(iv) all indebtedness secured by any mortgage, lien, charge, encumbrance, pledge or other security 
interest upon property owned by IPS EnterprisesIDEA Florida whether or not IPS 
EnterprisesIDEA Florida has assumed or become liable for the payment thereof. 
 
For the purpose of computing “Debt”, there shall be excluded (A) any particular Debt if upon or 
prior to the Maturity thereof, there shall have been deposited with the proper depository in trust 
the necessary funds (or evidences of such Debt or investments that will provide sufficient funds, 
if permitted by the instrument creating such Debt) for the payment, redemption or satisfaction of 
such Debt and (B) any Debt that is incurred pursuant to, secured under or for the benefit of 
any facility described within any Other Master Lease, whether parity thereunder or 







 4 


subordinate thereto; and thereafter such funds, evidences of Debt and investments so 
deposited shall not be included in any computation of the assets of IPS Enterprises, and the 
income from any such deposits shall not be included in the calculation of Pledged Revenues. 
 
“Series 2020 Facilities” means (i) 11612 N. Nebraska Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33612 and 
(ii) 5050 E. 10th Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33619. 
 
Section 4.4 Pledge of Lease Payments. 
 
(c) IPS Enterprises covenants and agrees to deposit all Pledged RevenuesLease Payments into 
the account (or accounts) that is subject to a Company Deposit Account Control Agreement 
thereunder. 
 


119799.0000009 EMF_US 83747459v1 








 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


1 


WORKSPACE INTERIORS FURNITURE AGREEMENT 
 


This Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___ day of ___________, 2020 
(“Effective Date”) by and between Workspace Interiors, a division of Office Depot, LLC (“Workspace Interiors”), and IDEA 
Florida, Inc, (“Customer”). Workspace Interiors and Customer are each a “party” and collectively are the “parties” to this 
Agreement.   
 
Workspace Interiors agrees to sell to Customer the furnishings (collectively, the “Furnishings”) and other services 
described from time to time in separate written proposals (each, a “Proposal”) provided by Workspace Interiors on the 
following terms and conditions. All transactions relating to the Furnishings and Proposals are subject to these terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. The Proposal shall include the quotation documents, order forms, cover letters, and 
the like, of which these terms and conditions form a part, and which represent the understandings between Workspace 
Interiors and Customer. The parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Pricing. Prices shall be determined by Workspace Interiors in its sole discretion. Prices quoted for Furnishings, 


installation fee and freight charges, as applicable, are firm for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of Proposal, 
which is incorporated herein by reference. Thereafter, pricing is subject to change without notice. Sales of 
Furnishings pursuant to this Agreement shall not be included in Net Sales for calculation of any rebates under other 
agreements, unless explicitly set forth in such other agreements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing stated 
herein shall conflict with or prevent Customer’s ability to receive any OMNIA purchasing rebates available to 
Customer.  
 
Customer’s signing/initialing of the Proposal or Customer’s issuance of a purchase order, order confirmation or 
other similar documentation shall constitute Customer’s acceptance of the Proposal, including the prices, quantities 
and types of Furnishings offered therein.  Installation will be included on each Proposal and calculated at twenty 
percent (20%) of the total product price quoted in the Proposal.  Freight will be included on each Proposal and 
calculated at ten percent (10%) of the total product price quoted in the Proposal.  Should costs associated with 
Freight or Installation increase or decrease on a project by three percent (3%) or more, Workspace Interiors and 
IDEA Florida, Inc agree to adjust the Freight and Installation charges by one percent (1%) for every three percent 
(3%) change from the original charges stated on the Proposal. 
 


2. Term & Termination. This Agreement will be effective for a period of one (1) year from the Effective Date (the 
“Initial Term”).  Thereafter, this Agreement may be renewed for two (2) successive two (2) year periods (each a 
“Renewal Term”), upon written agreement of the parties, and shall continue in full force and effect until terminated 
in accordance with the provisions herein. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) 
days written notice to the other party. 
 


3. Credit. Customer must receive credit approval from Workspace Interiors prior to each order of Furnishings. Credit 
may be established upon acceptance of satisfactory credit information, including a completed credit application. 
Customer's credit limit shall be established by Workspace Interiors, which reserves the right to lower Customer’s 
credit limit or refuse to deliver any orders if at any time: (a) Customer is delinquent in making payments or is 
otherwise in breach of this Agreement; or (b) Customer’s credit standing becomes impaired or reasonably 
unsatisfactory to Workspace Interiors. 
 


4. Payment. 
 
a. Deposits. Dependent upon current credit worthiness, a minimum deposit of thirty percent (30%) may be 


required prior to the entering of any order. Workspace Interiors shall be entitled to delay processing Customer’s 
order until it receives Customer’s deposit in full. No interest shall accrue against such deposit. Workspace 
Interiors reserves the right to modify the amount of Customer’s required deposit or require an additional deposit 
based on various factors, including, but not limited to, Customer’s credit and the manufacturer(s) of the 
Furnishings ordered. 
 


b. Terms.  Invoices are due thirty (30) days from the date of invoice, unless otherwise specified in the Proposal 
or a duly executed written agreement between the parties.  Invoices not paid within twenty (20) days shall bear 
interest at the rate of 1.5% per month or the maximum amount allowed under law, whichever is less, from the 
due date of the invoice. Invoices will be issued to Customer after installation is substantially completed, unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties. “Substantial completion” of installation shall mean that installation 
has been completed for the material elements of the project, pending satisfaction of punch list items. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if substantial completion is delayed for more than thirty (30) days for reasons 







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


2 


beyond Workspace Interior’s control, an additional deposit will be required. Installation fees and freight charges 
will be itemized separately on the invoice. 


 
c. Withholding. NO MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF PAYMENT MAY BE WITHHELD ON AN INVOICE 


FOR OBJECTIVELY LEGITIMATE ITEMS SET FORTH ON THE PUNCH LIST PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 7.B. CUSTOMER SHALL GIVE WRITTEN NOTICE OF SUCH WITHHOLDING TO 
WORKSPACE INTERIORS PRIOR TO THE DATE PAYMENT IS DUE. ONCE PUNCH LIST ITEMS HAVE 
BEEN REMEDIED, CUSTOMER SHALL REMIT UNPAID BALANCE WITHIN TWENTY BUSINESS (20) DAYS 
AFTER WORKSPACE INTERIORS COMPLETED AGREED UPON REPAIRS AND ADJUSTMENTS. 


 
d. Taxes. Customer shall pay all applicable taxes assessed on the sale of Furnishings. In order to claim an 


exemption from such taxes, Customer must supply Workspace Interiors a valid exemption certificate prior to 
delivery of the Furnishings, except for government entities for which a certificate is not required. 


 
5. Orders. 


 
a. Approval; Changes. Customer shall have sole responsibility to verify that information within the Proposal, 


including, but not limited to, product number, fabric, specifications and quantities, is correct. Any services 
rendered to Customer to change or modify the specification and layout before or during installation will be 
charged to Customer at prevailing rates, only upon prior written notice by Workspace Interiors to Customer of 
such amount and acceptance by Customer, prior to Workspace Interiors rendering such services. If such 
changes or modifications result in additional products, parts, materials or labor, they will also be billed to 
Customer at prevailing rates in accordance with this section. 
 


b. Cancellations. Unless mutually agreed upon in writing by the parties, all orders are non-cancelable, not 
returnable and all sales are final. 
 


c. Orders that Cannot be Fulfilled. If any Furnishings cannot be supplied, Workspace Interiors and Customer 
will work to find an agreeable substitution of similar furnishings. If the parties cannot agree to a substitution, the 
order will be revised to remove such item(s) and the balance of the order shall be adjusted accordingly. 


 
6. Storage and Other Charges. 


 
a. Storage Off-Site. 


(i) Furnishings delivered by Workspace Interiors, or its designated agent, prior to the scheduled installation 
date may be stored by Workspace Interiors, subject to space availability, at Customer's request at no charge 
for thirty (30) days. Storage charges will be invoiced for Furnishings stored beyond the initial thirty (30) day 
period. In addition, if installation of the Furnishings is delayed beyond the scheduled installation date, due 
to no fault of Workspace Interiors, storage charges incurred by Workspace Interiors as a result of the delay 
will be invoiced to Customer from the first day of storage and will be billed monthly thereafter.  All additional 
charges incurred by Workspace Interiors for freight charges, transportation costs, extra or excessive sorting 
or handling, shall be paid by Customer upon receipt of an itemized list of expenses by project. 


(ii) When the Furnishings are shipped directly to Customer from the manufacturer, Workspace Interiors will 
coordinate shipments with the Customer to arrive at the job site at a reasonable time prior to the scheduled 
installation date. If Workspace Interiors, or its designated agent, is prevented from delivering the 
Furnishings to the job site as a result of any cause or event beyond the control of Workspace Interiors, the 
Furnishings will be rerouted to another suitable location. Any charges associated with such storage will be 
invoiced to the Customer from the first day of storage and will be billed monthly thereafter. All additional 
charges incurred by Workspace Interiors for freight charges, rerouting charges, transportation costs, extra 
or excessive sorting or handling, shall be paid by Customer upon receipt of an itemized list of expenses by 
project. 
 


b. Storage by Customer. Upon delivery of the Furnishings to the job site, Customer shall, at its own expense, 
provide adequate and secure storage space for staging of the Furnishings during installation. Customer will be 
responsible for the security of the Furnishings while stored during installation. It is understood and agreed that 
neither the loss, theft or substantial damage to or of Furnishings after delivery but prior to installation shall 
relieve Customer of its obligation to make payments required pursuant to the Agreement. If the Furnishings 
must be moved during installation due to other trades or any other reason out of Workspace Interiors’ control 
("Additional Moving"), Customer shall pay the cost of Additional Moving at the applicable installation labor 
rate. 
 







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


3 


7. Inspections. 
 
a. Inspection upon Delivery and Freight Claims 


(i) Workspace Interiors, or its designated agent, shall receive, inspect, and make any necessary freight claims, 
except when shipments are direct from the manufacturer. However, Workspace Interiors may elect to meet 
direct trailer shipments at the job site and inspect the items in accordance with this provision. Workspace 
Interiors shall notify Customer of such election for direct shipments. 


(ii) Unless Workspace Interiors elects to meet direct trailer shipments at the job site as outlined above, when 
shipments are direct from the manufacturer, Customer will be responsible for receiving and inspecting 
shipments. Customer agrees that it will have necessary receiving personnel available for accepting delivery. 
Freight claims for damaged Furnishings shall be valid only if the damage is recorded and signed for on the 
bill of lading or freight bill. If damage to Furnishings is discovered, Customer must keep all packing 
materials. No claim for Furnishings damaged in transit can be accepted unless Customer notifies 
Workspace Interiors in writing of all claims for damaged or lost merchandise within three (3) days of delivery. 
Workspace Interiors will file all such freight claims with the carrier. Workspace Interiors’ responsibility for 
freight claims ceases once clear receipt is given to Customer by the carrier. 


(iii) Workspace Interiors is not responsible for concealed damage and/or latent defects discovered more than 
thirty (30) days after delivery. 


 
b. Inspection of Furnishings/Installation. Furnishings delivered and brought onto the job site as scheduled shall 


be inspected immediately upon delivery and completion of installation, if applicable, and accepted by the 
Customer, subject to any exceptions as noted in writing. Within three (3) business days of the delivery, and 
installation, if applicable, of the Furnishings, Customer must notify Workspace Interiors in writing of any 
discrepancies. Customer and Workspace Interiors shall immediately identify in writing a punch list of all 
necessary repairs and adjustments.  Workspace Interiors shall have a reasonable time to cure said 
discrepancies. If no discrepancies are identified by Customer within three (3) days after delivery and installation, 
if applicable, Furnishings will be deemed accepted by Customer. 
 


8. Delivery and Installation Timing. Pricing set forth in Section 1, above, is for delivery and installation of the 
Furnishings during regular business hours, excluding weekends and holidays recognized by Workspace Interiors. 
Delivery and/or installation outside of regular business hours may result in increased pricing. Additional labor costs 
resulting from overtime work performed at Customer's request will be paid by Customer at the standard overtime 
rate of Workspace Interiors and/or its agent(s). Additional installation requests made by Customer at the time of 
installation that are outside of the scope of the Proposal will be charged based on additional time incurred by 
Workspace Interiors and/or its agent(s), only upon prior written notice to Customer of the additional time and cost 
for such request. 
 


9. Trade Regulations. If trade agreements, regulations or contracts in force at the time of installation restrict 
Workspace Interiors’ ability to use its own installation personnel to erect, assemble, dismantle, attach, affix, or bolt 
in place any Furnishings, or perform other installation of the Furnishings, Customer shall bear all additional costs 
resulting from such restrictions. 
 


10. Delivery/Jobsite Requirements. 
 


a. Condition of Jobsite. Customer agrees to have premises available on the requested date of installation and 
for a reasonable time thereafter for installation during the regular business day. Customer's job site shall be 
reasonably clean, clear, and free of debris prior to installation. Delivery and installation encumbrances which 
necessitate additional labor will result in extra charges, only upon prior notice to Customer. If installation is to 
be placed over carpeting, tiles, or other floor covering, Customer hereby assures Workspace Interiors that  all 
such coverings will be completed prior to time installation is scheduled. The job site shall be free of interference 
from all trades in the work areas, and if the job site is not free of such trade interference, the delivery and 
installation shall not proceed until such interference has been eliminated, or other arrangements are agreed to 
in writing. Workspace Interiors shall be held harmless and shall not assume liability for job delay due to failure 
to meet any of the preceding conditions. 
 


b. Jobsite Services. Electric current, light, heat, trash disposal facilities, hoisting and/or elevator service, and 
adequate facilities for off-loading, staging, moving, and handling of the Furnishings will be furnished without 
charge to Workspace Interiors. Customer acknowledges that if the installed Furnishings require electrical hook-
ups, outlets, wiring, or other similar services, at Customer’s election, Workspace Interiors may provide such 
services through licensed subcontractors at an additional fee or Customer shall be responsible for engaging 
appropriate licensed professionals. 







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


4 


 
c. Permits. Permits are the responsibility of the Customer unless expressly provided in the Proposal. 


 
11. Title and Risk of Loss. Title to Furnishings and all risk of loss or damage thereto shall pass to Customer upon 


delivery to Customer and Substantial Completion of installation, if any. 
 


12. Warranties and Limitation of Liability. Workspace Interiors warrants that Workspace Interiors is the legal and 
rightful owner of Furnishings or that it is legally licensed and/or authorized to sell and/or distribute Furnishings. 
Except as set forth below in Section 15, all Furnishings delivered under this Agreement will be free and clear of any 
and all encumbrances of any kind. Customer acknowledges that Workspace Interiors is not the manufacturer of any 
Furnishings purchased hereunder.  Customer shall be entitled to all applicable end-user warranties provided by the 
manufacturer(s) associated with the Furnishings purchased by Customer hereunder. Workspace Interiors will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to assist Customer in asserting such warranty rights. Labor is not included. 


 
THE WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY STATED IN THIS SECTION SUPERSEDE ALL INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS 
OF ANY AND ALL PURCHASE ORDERS, INVOICES, ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, OR OTHER WRITINGS OR 
STATEMENTS, WRITTEN OR OTHERWISE. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY STATED IN THIS SECTION, 
WORKSPACE INTERIORS DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND PRODUCT LIABILITY, 
SPECIFICALLY INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY, AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 


 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in no event will Workspace Interiors be liable for any indirect, special, 
incidental, or consequential damages, including without limitation damages for lost data or lost profits, whether 
based on contract, tort, or any other legal theory, even if advised as to the possibility of such damages. 
 


13. Customer’s Defaults and Remedies. The following shall be Defaults by Customer under this Agreement: (a) 
failure to make any payment or perform any obligation under this Agreement; (b) bankruptcy, insolvency, 
receivership or liquidation, or assignment for the benefit of creditors of Customer or any guarantor of Customer; or 
(c) sale, or encumbrance to or of Furnishings or the seizure, levy, or attachment of or to Furnishings prior to full 
payment for the Furnishings. Upon the occurrence of a Default, Workspace Interiors may, at its option and without 
notice, to the extent permitted by applicable law: (i) declare all amounts payable to be immediately due and payable; 
(ii) refuse to cause further deliveries hereunder to be made; (iii) immediately terminate this Agreement; or (iv) 
exercise all of the rights of a secured creditor under the Uniform Commercial Code, including, without limitation, 
repossession of any Furnishings delivered to Customer. The rights and remedies granted to Workspace Interiors 
hereunder are cumulative and nonexclusive. The exercise of any right or remedy under this Agreement shall be 
without prejudice to the exercise of any other rights or remedies provided by law or this Agreement. If Customer 
shall consist of more than one person or entity, the obligations hereunder of such persons or entities shall be joint 
and several. 
 


14. Insurance. 
 


a. Workspace Interiors shall procure and maintain at its own expense the following insurance coverage: Workers’ 
Compensation insurance in amounts required by the law(s) of the state in which the installation work is  
performed; Employer’s Liability insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each accident for $1,000,000 
each accident for bodily injury by accident, $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease, and 
$1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease; Commercial General Liability insurance (occurrence) with a 
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 each occurrence; $1,000,000 for 
personal injury liability; and $1,000,000 general aggregate; and Automobile Liability insurance with a combined 
single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000. 
 
In the event that Workspace Interiors is installing the Furnishings, Customer shall maintain industry standard 
commercial liability insurance.  
 


15. Security Interest. Workspace Interiors retains, and Customer hereby grants to Workspace Interiors, a security 
interest in the Furnishings to secure the purchase price therefore. The Furnishings shall remain personal property 
regardless of being fixed to any real property. If Customer defaults in the payment of the purchase price when due, 
Workspace Interiors shall have all rights and remedies granted by the Uniform Commercial Code. 
 


16. Loss of Funding and Commitment of Current Revenue. Termination of this Agreement under this paragraph is 
to be considered Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds. The Customer shall have the continuing right to 
terminate this Agreement at the end of each fiscal year or end of the special revenue fund or grant during the term 







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


5 


of the Agreement with regard to any services to be performed after the end of such fiscal year or end of the special 
revenue fund or grant, without the Customer incurring any liability to Workspace Interiors as a result of such 
termination, including early termination charges. If the Customer terminates this Agreement pursuant to this 
paragraph, Workspace Interiors will have the right to collect and retain payment for services rendered to the 
Customer through termination date but shall not be entitled to any early termination charges. 
 


 
17. No Waiver of Immunity. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, WORKSPACE INTERIORS 


ACKNOWLEDGES, STIPULATES, AND AGREES THAT NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF ANY 
DEFENSE AVAILABLE TO THE CUSTOMER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY SOVEREIGN, STATUTORY, AND/OR 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO THE CUSTOMER UNDER APPLICABLE LAW.  


 
18. Limitations. THE PARTIES ARE AWARE THAT THERE MAY BE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON THE 


AUTHORITY OF THE CUSTOMER (A PUBLIC SCHOOL) TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO LIENS ON THE CUSTOMER’S PROPERTY; DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS 
OF WARRANTIES; DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES; WAIVERS, DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF 
LEGAL RIGHTS, REMEDIES, REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESSES; LIMITATIONS OF PERIODS TO BRING LEGAL ACTION; GRANTING 
CONTROL OF LITIGATION OR SETTLEMENT TO ANOTHER PARTY; LIABILITY FOR ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THIRD PARTIES; 
PAYMENT OF ATTORNEYS’ FEES; DISPUTE RESOLUTION; INDEMNITIES; AND CONFIDENTIALITY (COLLECTIVELY, THE 
“LIMITATIONS”), AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATED TO THE LIMITATIONS WILL NOT BE BINDING ON THE CUSTOMER 
EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS AND CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA. 
 


19. Miscellaneous. 
 


a. Integration; Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and shall 
replace and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements, negotiations, and representations between 
the parties, whether oral or written. Orders placed under this Agreement shall be solely governed by the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. Any general terms and conditions of Customer referred to in purchase orders, 
order confirmations or elsewhere shall be of no force and effect. This Agreement shall only be modified or 
changed by a written amendment signed by both parties. 
 


b. Waiver. The waiver of any breach or provision of this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any succeeding breach 
or other provision. If any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the 
provisions shall remain in effect to the extent allowed by law and the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired. 


 
c. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this Agreement shall be given in 


writing, effective when mailed, and sent to the mailing addresses set forth on the signature page of this 
Agreement. 


 
d. Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” shall mean all information obtained by one party from the 


other party that is not generally known to the public and that a reasonable business person would deem 
confidential.  The receiving party will treat Confidential Information as confidential and proprietary and, until two 
(2) years after expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, will: (a) use the Confidential Information solely 
for the purposes set forth in this Agreement; (b) take suitable measures to maintain the confidentiality of the 
Confidential Information; and (c) not disclose or otherwise furnish the Confidential Information to any third party 
other than employees or independent contractors of the recipient who have a need to know the Confidential 
Information to perform its obligations. This paragraph shall not prohibit the customer from complying with 
Florida’s public record laws.  


 
e. Force Majeure. Except for Customer’s payment obligations, each party agrees that the other party shall not be 


liable for damages to such party to the extent resulting from a failure to perform if the non-performing party is 
unable to perform its obligations under the terms of this Agreement because of acts of God, government actions, 
pandemics, shortage of supplies, strikes, equipment or transmission failure or damage reasonably beyond the 
non-performing party’s control, or other causes reasonably beyond its control, or such other causes reasonably 
beyond the control of the non-performing party. 


 
f. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the State of 


Florida, without regard to conflict of laws principles. 
 







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


6 


g. Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, 
except that Workspace Interiors may assign this Agreement to any of its subsidiaries or affiliates at any time, 
and in connection with the transfer or sale of all or substantially all of its business related to this Agreement. 
 


 
 


[Signature Page Follows] 
 


  
  







 


Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement 
Revision Date: January 26, 2021 


7 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the Effective Date. 
 
OFFICE DEPOT, LLC  
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:   Vice President     
Date:       
 
6600 North Military Trail 
Boca Raton, Florida 33496 
Attn: Office of the General Counsel 


IDEA Florida, Inc 
 
 
By:       
Name:        
Title:        
Date:       
 
________________________ 
________________________ 
________________________ 
 


 





		Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement






Budget Regional Pricing for 2021-2022


Rosalinda Gonzalez
Business Development Manager


1246 Silber Road
Houston TX 77055


713.443.4885
Rosalinda.Gonzalez@WorkspaceInteriorsod.com


Tampa Region
Idea Public Schools Headquarters


2/4/2021
Budget


Product Sell Price:


Date:


Unit


Reference #:


ph


P r o p o s a l


ExtendedItem   Qty


Order Note:
Omnia Region 4 Contract R191812


1 $0.00 $0.001


Order Note:
Pricing is based on purchases from February 1, 2021 to September 1, 2021


1 $0.00 $0.002


Order Note:
Regional budget pricing is based on the furniture model WITHOUT Pre-Kl for 
2021-2022


1 $0.00 $0.003


Order Note:
Pricing is based on delivering and installing in a free and clear space with an  
approved Certificate of Occupancy


1 $0.00 $0.004


TAMPA


Idea Hope
Year 1-Without Pre-K


1 $187,065.00 $187,065.005


Idea Victory Vinik
Year 1-Without Pre-K


1 $187,065.00 $187,065.006


Total: $374,130.00


Page 1 of 4www.WorkspaceInteriorsOD.com







Budget Regional Pricing for 2021-2022


Rosalinda Gonzalez
Business Development Manager


1246 Silber Road
Houston TX 77055


713.443.4885
Rosalinda.Gonzalez@WorkspaceInteriorsod.com


Tampa Region
Idea Public Schools Headquarters


2/4/2021
Budget


Product Sell Price:


Date:


Unit


Reference #:


ph


P r o p o s a l


ExtendedItem   Qty
Proposal Notes


Deposit Required:


Additional Information:


Page 2 of 4www.WorkspaceInteriorsOD.com







Budget Regional Pricing for 2021-2022


Rosalinda Gonzalez
Business Development Manager


1246 Silber Road
Houston TX 77055


713.443.4885
Rosalinda.Gonzalez@WorkspaceInteriorsod.com


Tampa Region
Idea Public Schools Headquarters


2/4/2021
Budget


Product Sell Price:


Date:


Unit


Reference #:


ph


P r o p o s a l


ExtendedItem   Qty


Page 3 of 4www.WorkspaceInteriorsOD.com







Budget Regional Pricing for 2021-2022


Rosalinda Gonzalez
Business Development Manager


1246 Silber Road
Houston TX 77055


713.443.4885
Rosalinda.Gonzalez@WorkspaceInteriorsod.com


Tampa Region
Idea Public Schools Headquarters


2/4/2021
Budget


Product Sell Price:


Date:


Unit


Reference #:


ph


P r o p o s a l


ExtendedItem   Qty
Special Instructions:


Proposal valid for 30 days


Financing options available, ask our team about our Furniture Leasing Program. 


Please note: a deposit is required on all furniture orders prior to order placement


One of the following is required prior to placing your order: Signed Terms and Condition, Furniture Agreement on file or a Workspace Interiors Furniture 
Addendum on file


Workspace Interiors may require additional credit information, prior to placing your order


The appropriate tax will be applied at the time of invoicing


This proposal contains Special Order items that are Not Returnable


Once an order is placed, cancellations are Not Allowed.


Estimated leadtime is subject to the manufactures production / shipping schedule


Page 4 of 4www.WorkspaceInteriorsOD.com








 


 


FIRST AMENDMENT AND JOINDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT 


THIS FIRST AMENDMENT AND JOINDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”) dated 
as of January ___, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) is made by and between 5118 56TH LLC D/B/A AVESTA 
EXECUTIVE CENTER (“Landlord”), and IPS ENTERPRISES, INC., a Texas non-profit corporation 
(“Original Tenant”), and IDEA FLORIDA INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (“New Tenant”). 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, Landlord and Original Tenant entered into that certain Lease Agreement dated as of 
August 1, 2020 (the “Lease”), pursuant to which Landlord leases to Original Tenant, and Original Tenant 
leases from Landlord, certain premises located at 5118 N. 56th Street, Suite 210, Tampa, Florida (the 
“Premises”); and  


WHEREAS, at the request of Original Tenant and New Tenant, the parties desire to amend the Lease as of 
the Effective Date to add New Tenant, and to remove Original Tenant, as the “Tenant” of the Premises 
under the terms of the Lease, whereby only New Tenant would be entitled to use of the Premises as the 
“Tenant” under the terms of the Lease and Original Tenant will not be responsible for any obligations under 
the Lease arising after the Effective Date. 


NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein 
and in the Lease, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, Landlord, Original Tenant and New Tenant hereby agree as follows: 


1. Incorporation of Recitals and Defined Terms.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated 
into this Amendment and made a part hereof as though set forth herein.  Any term used herein which is not 
specifically defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Lease. 


2. Joinder of New Tenant.  New Tenant acknowledges receipt of the Lease and hereby irrevocably, 
absolutely and unconditionally joins in and becomes a party to the Lease as a “Tenant” thereunder, assumes 
all obligations of “Tenant” thereunder, agrees and consents to the representations, warranties, terms, 
covenants and provisions of the Lease and agrees to be bound thereto, with the same force and effect as if 
originally a “Tenant” party thereto, and guarantees to Landlord the payment of all sums due thereunder by 
Tenant.   
 
3. Removal of Original Tenant. As to matters arising after the Effective Date, Original Tenant shall 
no longer have any rights or obligations under the Lease and shall no longer be the “Tenant” under the 
Lease, and New Tenant shall constitute the sole “Tenant” under the terms of the Lease.  Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, Original Tenant shall not have any right or claim to any security deposit, 
payment, claim, refund or reimbursement of any sums under the Lease whatsoever, as the parties agree such 
rights and claims shall belong solely to New Tenant.  As to matters arising after the Effective Date, all 
references in the Lease to “Tenant” shall mean New Tenant.   


4. Notices.  Notices to New Tenant shall be sent to New Tenant via the same address provided in the 
Lease for notices to Original Tenant, except that the name of the receipt shall be the name of New Tenant 
rather than Original Tenant. 


5. Brokers.  Original Tenant and New Tenant do hereby represent that no real estate brokers are 
involved in the negotiation and execution of this Amendment.  Original Tenant and New Tenant shall 
indemnify Landlord from any and all liability for Tenant’s breach of the foregoing. 


 







 


2 


6. Ratification of Amended Lease.  Except as otherwise modified or amended by this Amendment, 
all other terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain unmodified, unamended, and in full force and effect 
and the Lease shall continue to be and remain in full force and effect in accordance therewith.  In the Lease, 
or any instrument, document or other consideration executed or delivered in connection therewith, any 
reference to the "Lease," shall be deemed and construed to be a reference to the Lease as amended hereby.  
In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Lease and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment 
shall control. 


 
7. No Defaults.  Neither Original Tenant nor New Tenant has any knowledge of any default by 
Landlord of any of the terms or conditions of the Lease (as amended) as of the Effective Date, and knows of 
no facts which, given the passage of time, would constitute a default by Landlord under the Lease.   
 
8. Entire Agreement.  This Amendment and any attachments hereto set forth all of the covenants, 
promises, agreements, conditions and understandings between Landlord, Original Tenant and New Tenant 
concerning the transactions contemplated herein and there are no covenants, promises, agreements, 
conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between Landlord, Original Tenant or New Tenant 
other than as are herein set forth. 
 
9. Execution Authority.  Each of the individuals signing this Amendment on behalf of Original 
Tenant and New Tenant represents and warrants that he or she has the full power and authority to do so and 
that upon such execution, Original Tenant and New Tenant, as applicable, shall be fully bound by each and 
every provision of the Lease, as hereby amended.   


 
10. Counterparts; Miscellaneous.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of identical 
counterparts, all of which, when taken together, shall constitute the same instrument.  A copy of the 
executed Amendment (in electronic form or otherwise) shall be deemed an original for all relevant 
purposes.  The exchange of copies of the executed Amendment by electronic mail or by any other electronic 
means intended to preserve the original graphic and pictorial appearance of a document shall constitute 
effective execution and delivery of this Amendment.  Signatures of any parties hereto transmitted 
electronically shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes.  New Tenant shall promptly 
reimburse Landlord for all reasonable fees and costs incurred by Landlord in connection with this 
Amendment and the matters contemplated herein. 
 


 


{Signatures appear on following page}







 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord, Original Tenant and New Tenant have executed this Amendment as 
of the Effective Date. 


WITNESSES:  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 


“LANDLORD” 
 
5118 56TH LLC D/B/A AVESTA EXECUTIVE 
CENTER  
 
Signature:_________________________________ 
Printed Name:______________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 
                
 


 
 
WITNESSES:  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 


 


WITNESSES:  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 


 
 
 
“ORIGINAL TENANT” 
 
IPS ENTERPRISES, INC., a Texas non-profit 
corporation  
 
Signature:_________________________________ 
Printed Name:______________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“NEW TENANT” 
 
IDEA FLORIDA INC., a Florida not-for-profit 
corporation  
 
Signature:_________________________________ 
Printed Name:______________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 
 
 


TPADOCS 23275923 2 48900.0003  





		FIRST AMENDMENT AND JOINDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT






 1 


 
 
 


INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 
 


 THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT is between RSA Consulting 
Group, LLC (“Contractor”) and IDEA Florida, Inc. (“Organization”) and is in effect as of the 1st 
day of February 2021 or upon execution by the Organization, whichever is later. 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor is qualified to provide liaison and advisory services regarding 
Organization’s community, governmental relations and media relations in the Tampa Bay region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Organization has offered Contractor work, and Contractor has accepted offer; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, both parties are in accord that the terms and conditions of the independent 
contractor relationship ought to be set forth in writing, and this document, hereinafter referred to as 
this “Agreement,” is prepared for that purpose. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises in this Agreement and of the 
engagement of Contractor by Organization as community, media, and governmental affairs consultant, 
the receipt and adequacy of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 


1. Contractor’s Work for Company.  As directed by Executive Director and its other 
executive officers, Contractor shall provide liaison and advisory services to IDEA Charter Schools – 
Hillsborough County in relation to all relevant stakeholder groups, local governmental agencies, 
departments, and elected officials.  Scope of services to include: 
   


Community/Political Affairs – Issue Management 
 


• Introduce executive officers and leadership team members of IDEA to local 
officials and staff as well as key stakeholders in the civic and business community. 


• Invite local officials and their staff to events/activities hosted by IDEA and/or 
partner organizations. 


• Invite, arrange, and coordinate opportunities for IDEA to attend and participate in 
events/activities within the community related to education and relevant topics. 


• Advise IDEA on undercurrents related to local and state policies relevant to the 
schools opening/operations as well as Charters in general. 


• Identify, monitor, and research policy and school board actions that present a threat 
or opportunities for advancing IDEA’s opening in Tampa Bay. 


• Provide real time updates on local budget-related developments. 
• Advise and counsel on rules regarding lobbying and gift prohibitions and manage 


all necessary registration filings for contacts with officials. 
 
Media & PR – Communications 


• Provide updates on current events, news, and political discussions relevant to IDEA 
and its priorities.  







 2 


• Assist IDEA internal Communications team with accessing relationships in the 
Tampa Bay media market. 


• Assist and advise IDEA Communications team with strengthening its social media 
presence and building channels and connections with key stakeholders in Tampa 
Bay. 


• Provide strategic advice and council on addressing unfavorable stories or narratives 
related to the opening of IDEA in Hillsborough.  


• Assist with development of communications plan and strategic placement of 
positive stories about IDEA schools, program and impacts in community. 


• Identify opportunities for earned and paid media to elevate the IDEA brand and 
program across all relevant stakeholder groups.   


• Assist with development of events and communications to highlight the grand 
opening of Hillsborough Campuses.   


           
2. Fees.  Contractor shall be paid a monthly rate of $6,000 on the 15th of each month.  


Contractor assumes all responsibility for paying taxes due on fees received from Organization.  
 


3. Term of Agreement.  The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on February 
1, 2021, and shall continue until June 30, 2021.  Termination of this relationship will be initiated and 
granted with a 60 day written notice by either party named in this agreement.   


 
4. Confidentially.  During the term of this Agreement and forever thereafter, Contractor 


shall treat as confidential, hold in trust and confidence, and not use for any purpose other than 
providing services under this Agreement, all information obtained by Contractor concerning the 
business, operations, and plans of Company or its business affiliates, including, without limitation, all 
such information compiled or generated by Contractor.  All copies of any document or other medium 
containing any and all such information shall be promptly returned to Company upon termination or 
expiration of this Agreement, or when requested by Company, whichever first occurs.   


 
5. Conflict of Interest.  Contractor has no business, including, but not limited to, the 


representation of other clients, that would conflict in any manner with the performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees to inform Organization if any such actual or 
potential conflict arises during the term of this Agreement. 
 


6. Notice.   All communications with regard to this agreement should be sent to
 
If to Organization: 
 
IDEA Florida 
 
Attention: Adam Miller 
 


 
If to Contractor: 
 
RSA Consulting Group, LLC 
235 W. Brandon Blvd., Ste. 640 
Brandon, FL 33511-5103 
Attention:  Ron Pierce


 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 
written below. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 







 3 


IDEA Florida  - Hillsborough  
 
       
ADAM MILLER 
 
 
       
Date 
 
 


RSA Consulting Group, LLC 
 
       
RONALD PIERCE 
 
 
       
Date 
 





		INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT






Page 4


Page 6 #VALUE!


IDEA Florida, Inc
Weslaco, Texas


MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT


September 30, 2020







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Statement of Financial Position Page 1


Statements of Activities  Page 2


Statements of Cash Flows Page 3


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Table of Contents


September 30, 2020







September 30, 2020 August 31, 2020


(Unaudited) (Unaudited)


ASSETS


Current Assets


Cash and cash equivalents‐operating 8,850$   9,409$                 


Due from government agencies 1,354,394  158,111               


Due from related parties 1,491,150  1,996,067           


Prepaid expenses 3,959  ‐ 


Other current assets 163,000  163,000               


Total Current Assets 3,021,353  2,326,587           


TOTAL ASSETS 3,021,353$                  2,326,587$         


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current Liabilities


Deferred revenues 2,688,987$                  2,688,987$         


Due to related parties 305,001  226,011               


Total Current Liabilities 2,993,988  2,914,998           


Total Liabilities 2,993,988  2,914,998           


Net Assets


Without donor restrictions 27,365  ‐ 


With donor restrictions ‐  (588,412)             


Total Net Assets 27,365  (588,412)             


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3,021,353$                  2,326,587$         


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position


Page 1







CY YTD YTD Revised


08/31/20 09/30/20 09/30/20 09/30/20


Actual Actual Actual Budget


(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)


REVENUES


Local support


Grants‐private sources 68,643$   1,196,283$            1,429,394$            10,713,538$         


Other revenue 563  1,198  1,970  780,342                 


Total Local Support 69,206  1,197,481               1,431,364               11,493,880           


Total Revenues 69,206  1,197,481               1,431,364               11,493,880           


EXPENSES


Salaries and wages 316,944  361,458  912,611  5,680,533              


Bonuses 5,000  (20,200)  (7,700)  401,701 


Employee allowances and benefits 46,500  52,574  119,574  ‐ 


Payroll taxes 25,197  34,194  77,207  62,161 


Group health insurance 11,177  25,029  42,944  347,900 


Workers compensation 1,861  2,879  6,000  25,996 


Unemployment compensation 917  1,334  2,881  22,335 


Retirement plan 13,625  15,325  42,084  171,478 


Legal service fees 230  ‐  230  ‐ 


Repairs and maintenance ‐  ‐  ‐  31,863 


Utilities 244  929  1,173  ‐ 


Operating leases 7,292  7,267  20,616  263,541 


Contracted services 31,262  86,761  174,894  2,661,498              


Textbook and reading material ‐  ‐  281  ‐ 


Supplies ‐ $1,000 to $4,999 ‐  ‐  ‐  88,988 


Supplies  71   4,530  9,499  483,093 


Travel 467  2,052  (2,479)  981,608 


Dues ‐  ‐  ‐  93,422 


Miscellaneous 733  7,573  9,458  177,763 


Total Operating Expenses 461,521  581,704                  1,409,275               11,493,880           


Change in Operating Net Assets (392,315)  615,777                  22,089  ‐ 


Change in Net Assets (392,315)  615,777                  22,089  ‐ 


Net Assets at Beginning of Year ‐  ‐  5,277  ‐ 


Net Assets at End of Period (392,315)  615,777                  27,365  ‐ 


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Activities


CY MTD


Page 2







09/30/20


(Unaudited)


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22,089$          


Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:


Due from governments (1,354,394)      


Other receivables 976,100          


Prepaid expenses (3,959)              


Other current assets (1,000)              


Deferred revenues  175,000          


Other liabilities 185,268          


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (896) 


DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (896) 


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,749               


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 8,850$            


Cash and cash equivalents 8,850               


Cash and cash equivalents—restricted ‐ 


Total cash and cash equivalents 8,850$            


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES


Cash paid during the period for: 


     Interest ‐$


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows


Page 3







Page 4


Page 6 #VALUE!


IDEA Florida, Inc
Weslaco, Texas


MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT


October 31, 2020







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Statements of Financial Position Page 1


Statements of Activities  Page 2


Statement of Cash Flows Page 3


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Table of Contents


October 31, 2020







October 31, 2020 September 30, 2020


(Unaudited) (Unaudited)


ASSETS


Current Assets


Cash and cash equivalents‐operating 8,591$   8,850$  


Due from government agencies 1,544,074  1,354,394 


Due from related parties 1,019,705  1,491,150 


Prepaid expenses 28,859  3,959 


Other current assets 163,000  163,000 


Total Current Assets 2,764,229  3,021,353 


TOTAL ASSETS 2,764,229$                   3,021,353$                  


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current Liabilities


Deferred revenues 2,090,855$   2,688,987$  


Due to related parties 392,462  305,001 


Total Current Liabilities 2,483,317  2,993,988 


Total Liabilities 2,483,317  2,993,988 


Net Assets


Without donor restrictions 280,912  27,365 


Total Net Assets 280,912  27,365 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,764,229$                   3,021,353$                  


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position


Page 1







CY YTD YTD Revised


09/30/20 10/31/20 10/31/20 10/31/20


Actual Actual Actual Budget


(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)


REVENUES


Local support


Grants‐private sources 1,196,283$             787,812$                2,217,206$             10,713,538$         


Other revenue 1,198  931  2,901  780,342 


Total Local Support 1,197,481  788,744  2,220,107  11,493,880            


Total Revenues 1,197,481               788,744  2,220,107               11,493,880            


EXPENSES


Salaries and wages 361,458  374,007  1,286,619  5,680,533 


Bonuses (20,200)  11,260  3,560  401,701 


Employee allowances and benefits 52,574  19,000  138,574  ‐ 


Payroll taxes 34,194  19,993  97,200  62,161 


Group health insurance 25,029  23,560  66,504  347,900 


Workers compensation 2,879  1,930  7,930  25,996 


Unemployment compensation 1,334  923  3,805  22,335 


Retirement plan 15,325  12,365  54,450  171,478 


Legal service fees ‐  (9,684)  (9,454)  ‐ 


Repairs and maintenance ‐  ‐  ‐  31,863 


Utilities 929  721  1,894  ‐ 


Operating leases 7,267  9,114  29,730  263,541 


Contracted services 86,761  59,015  233,909  2,661,498 


Gasoline and Other Fuels ‐  31  31  ‐ 


Textbook and reading material ‐  ‐  281  ‐ 


Supplies ‐ $1,000 to $4,999 ‐  ‐  ‐  88,988 


Supplies  4,530  3,920  13,419  483,093 


Travel 2,052  5,045  2,567  981,608 


General insurance ‐  954  954  ‐ 


Dues ‐  ‐  ‐  93,422 


Miscellaneous 7,573  3,043  12,501  177,763 


Total Operating Expenses 581,704                  535,197                  1,944,472               11,493,880            


Change in Operating Net Assets 615,777                  253,546                  275,635                  ‐ 


Change in Net Assets 615,777  253,546  275,635  ‐ 


Net Assets at Beginning of Year ‐  ‐  5,277  ‐ 


Net Assets at End of Period 615,777  253,546  280,912  ‐ 


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Activities


CY MTD


Page 2







10/31/20


(Unaudited)


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 275,635$        


Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:


Due from governments (1,544,074)      


Other receivables 1,447,545       


Prepaid expenses (28,859)           


Other current assets (1,000)              


Deferred revenues  (423,133)         


Other liabilities 272,730          


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (1,155)              


DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,155)              


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,747               


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 8,591$            


Cash and cash equivalents 8,591               


Cash and cash equivalents—restricted ‐ 


Total cash and cash equivalents 8,591$            


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES


Cash paid during the period for: 


     Interest ‐$


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows


Page 3







Page 4


Page 6 #VALUE!


IDEA Florida, Inc
Weslaco, Texas


MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT


November 30, 2020







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Statements of Financial Position Page 1


Statements of Activities  Page 2


Statement of Cash Flows Page 3


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Table of Contents


November 30, 2020







November 30, 2020 October 31, 2020


(Unaudited) (Unaudited)


ASSETS


Current Assets


Cash and cash equivalents‐operating 8,591$                           8,591$                          


Due from government agencies 2,274,362                     1,544,074                    


Due from related parties 578,616                         1,019,705                    


Prepaid expenses 31,219                           28,859                          


Other current assets 203,000                         163,000                        


Total Current Assets 3,095,789                     2,764,229                    


TOTAL ASSETS 3,095,789$                   2,764,229$                  


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current Liabilities


Deferred revenues 2,090,855$                   2,090,855$                  


Due to related parties 517,726                         392,462                        


Total Current Liabilities 2,608,581                     2,483,317                    


Total Liabilities 2,608,581                     2,483,317                    


Net Assets


Without donor restrictions 487,209                         280,912                        


Total Net Assets 487,209                         280,912                        


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3,095,789$                   2,764,229$                  


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position


Page 1







CY YTD YTD Revised


10/31/20 11/30/20 11/30/20 11/30/20


Actual Actual Actual Budget


(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)


REVENUES


Local support


Grants‐private sources 787,812$                730,289$                2,947,495$             10,713,538$         


Other revenue 931  706  3,607  780,342 


Total Local Support 788,744  730,994  2,951,102  11,493,880            


Total Revenues 788,744  730,994  2,951,102               11,493,880            


EXPENSES


Salaries and wages 374,007  313,264  1,599,882  5,680,533 


Bonuses 11,260  13,386  16,946  401,701 


Employee allowances and benefits 19,000  20,375  158,949  ‐ 


Payroll taxes 19,993  26,425  123,625  62,161 


Group health insurance 23,560  27,310  93,814  347,900 


Workers compensation 1,930  2,268  10,198  25,996 


Unemployment compensation 923  1,072  4,877  22,335 


Retirement plan 12,365  14,817  69,267  171,478 


Legal service fees (9,684)  63  (9,391)  ‐ 


Repairs and maintenance ‐  ‐  ‐  31,863 


Utilities 721  1,049  2,943  ‐ 


Operating leases 9,114  9,006  38,736  263,541 


Contracted services 59,015  72,132  306,041  2,661,498 


Gasoline and Other Fuels 31  192  223  ‐ 


Textbook and reading material ‐  ‐  281  ‐ 


Supplies ‐ $1,000 to $4,999 ‐  ‐  ‐  88,988 


Supplies  3,920  17,842  31,261  483,093 


Travel 5,045  3,686  6,252  981,608 


General insurance 954  1,698  2,653  ‐ 


Dues ‐  ‐  ‐  93,422 


Miscellaneous 3,043  112  12,613  177,763 


Total Operating Expenses 535,197                  524,698                  2,469,170               11,493,880            


Change in Operating Net Assets 253,546                  206,297                  481,932                  ‐ 


Change in Net Assets 253,546  206,297  481,932  ‐ 


Net Assets at Beginning of Year ‐  ‐  5,277  ‐ 


Net Assets at End of Period 253,546  206,297  487,208  ‐ 


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Activities


CY MTD


Page 2







11/30/20


(Unaudited)


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 481,932$        


Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:


Due from governments (2,274,362)      


Other receivables 1,888,634       


Prepaid expenses (31,219)           


Other current assets (41,000)           


Deferred revenues  (423,133)         


Other liabilities 397,994          


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (1,155)              


DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,155)              


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,747               


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 8,591$            


Cash and cash equivalents 8,591               


Cash and cash equivalents—restricted ‐ 


Total cash and cash equivalents 8,591$            


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES


Cash paid during the period for: 


     Interest ‐$


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows


Page 3







Page 4


Page 6 #VALUE!


IDEA Florida, Inc
Weslaco, Texas


MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT


December 31, 2020







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Statements of Financial Position Page 1


Statements of Activities  Page 2


Statement of Cash Flows Page 3


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Table of Contents


December 31, 2020







December 31, 2020 November 30, 2020


(Unaudited) (Unaudited)


ASSETS


Current Assets


Cash and cash equivalents‐operating 8,591$                           8,591$                          


Due from government agencies 2,294,151                     2,274,362                    


Due from related parties 167,967                         578,616                        


Prepaid expenses 35,761                           31,219                          


Other current assets 208,000                         203,000                        


Total Current Assets 2,714,470                     3,095,789                    


TOTAL ASSETS 2,714,470$                   3,095,789$                  


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


Current Liabilities


Deferred revenues 2,090,855$                   2,090,855$                  


Due to related parties 598,140                         517,726                        


Total Current Liabilities 2,688,994                     2,608,581                    


Total Liabilities 2,688,994                     2,608,581                    


Net Assets


Without donor restrictions 25,476                           487,209                        


Total Net Assets 25,476                           487,209                        


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,714,470$                   3,095,789$                  


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position


Page 1







CY YTD YTD Revised


11/30/20 12/31/20 12/31/20 12/31/20


Actual Actual Actual Budget


(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)


REVENUES


Local support


Grants‐private sources 730,289$                19,789$                   2,967,283$             10,713,538$         


Other revenue 706  ‐  3,607  780,342 


Total Local Support 730,994  19,789  2,970,890  11,493,880            


Total Revenues 730,994  19,789  2,970,890               11,493,880            


EXPENSES


Salaries and wages 313,264  288,776  1,888,659  5,680,533 


Stipends ‐  4,360  4,360  ‐ 


Bonuses 13,386  13,150  30,096  401,701 


Employee allowances and benefits 20,375  24,525  183,474  ‐ 


Payroll taxes 26,425  26,681  150,306  62,161 


Group health insurance 27,310  29,515  123,329  347,900 


Workers compensation 2,268  2,450  12,648  25,996 


Unemployment compensation 1,072  1,157  6,033  22,335 


Retirement plan 14,817  15,334  84,601  171,478 


Legal service fees 63  ‐  (9,391)  ‐ 


Repairs and maintenance ‐  ‐  ‐  31,863 


Utilities 1,049  1,345  4,288  ‐ 


Operating leases 9,006  6,894  45,629  263,541 


Contracted services 72,132  42,117  348,159  2,661,498 


Gasoline and Other Fuels 192  122  346  ‐ 


Textbook and reading material ‐  ‐  281  ‐ 


Supplies ‐ $1,000 to $4,999 ‐  ‐  ‐  88,988 


Supplies  17,842  20,305  51,567  483,093 


Travel 3,686  552  6,804  981,608 


General insurance 1,698  1,698  4,351  ‐ 


Dues ‐  ‐  ‐  93,422 


Miscellaneous 112  2,539  15,152  177,763 


Total Operating Expenses 524,698                  481,521                  2,950,691               11,493,880            


Change in Operating Net Assets 206,297                  (461,733)                 20,199  ‐ 


Change in Net Assets 206,297  (461,733)                 20,199  ‐ 


Net Assets at Beginning of Year ‐  ‐  5,277  ‐ 


Net Assets at End of Period 206,297  (461,733)                 25,476  ‐ 


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Activities


CY MTD


Page 2







12/31/20


(Unaudited)


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 20,199$          


Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:


Due from governments (2,294,151)      


Other receivables 2,299,282       


Prepaid expenses (35,761)           


Other current assets (46,000)           


Deferred revenues  (423,133)         


Other liabilities 478,407          


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (1,155)              


DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,155)              


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,747               


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 8,591$            


Cash and cash equivalents 8,591               


Cash and cash equivalents—restricted ‐ 


Total cash and cash equivalents 8,591$            


SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES


Cash paid during the period for: 


     Interest ‐$


IDEA Florida, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows


Page 3





		9-30-2020 IDEA Florida Financial Statements

		10-31-2020 IDEA Florida Financial Statements

		11-30-2020 IDEA Florida Financial Statements

		12-31-2020 IDEA Florida Financial Statements










NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Board of Directors 
of IDEA Public Schools will be held on February 12, 2021.   The Board will convene in Open Session at 9:30 am 
(EST). The Board meeting will be held via conference call pursuant to the rules adopted by the Administration 
Commission under s. 120.54(5).  Such meeting is a regular meeting. 


IDEA Florida  


Board Meeting Agenda 


February 12, 2021 


Trey Traviesa, Chair 
Lizzette Gonzalez-Reynolds, Secretary 
Nick Rhodes, Director 


Meeting URL: https://bluejeans.com/8507669770 or 1.888.240.2560 : Meeting ID: 850 766 9770 


Call to Order: 9:30am (EST) 


Welcome: Chair Traviesa 


1. Approval of Minutes from October 27, 2020 business meeting (Appendix 1)
2. Updates


A. National Update- JoAnn Gama
B. Executive Director Tampa
C. Executive Director Jacksonville
D. Director of Finance- Financial Statements


3. Action Items
A. Nomination of Christina Barker to join Governing Board of IDEA Florida
B. Election of Officers
C. Contract for Curriculum Materials and Consultation
D. Ratify Givewell Foundation Grant Agreement
E. Request for Proposals: Certified Public Accountant for Annual Financial Audit
F. Child Nutrition Program Meal Charge Policies
G. Resolution Authorizing Amendments for Master Lease Agreement for Tampa Campus #2
H. Workspace Interiors Furniture Agreement (Office Depot)
I. Amendment to Lease for 5118 N. 56th Street, Tampa FL
J. Contract for Consulting Services


4. Public Comment
5. Member Comments
6. Adjourn



https://bluejeans.com/8507669770









